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R : L e t ' s s a y u n i o n i t i s n o w . W h a t w a s t h e n a m e o f y o u r

union first, layed uff piofessAonaJr-workers?

I : U n i t e d O f f i c e a n d P r o f e s s i o n a l W o r k e r s . N o t a t a l l • T h e y

organized the UAW...

R : G i r l s .

I: What year did they organize that?

R: I don't know, 1940 I guess.

I: So right at the same time that—

R: There are two girls sti l l down in that local that were there...

I : M a r i e ?

R : M a r i e a n d Ti l l y.

I : I d i d n ' t m e e t h e r.

R: Well, Marie was a longtime chairman I think. I guess she still is of

the Girls Office Worker's Committee. She was my secretary.

I: Oh really. Yeah, you could tell talking to her that she had a lot of

exper ience.••

R : o i l b o y.

I: Well, they were organized by the United Office and Professional

Workers so they were never a part of UAW factory workers?

R: They are now.

I: They are now.

R: Now wait a minute. No. Even down town in Solidarity House they are

not UAW members. They have an Office Workers Union of their own.
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I: Is it an offshoot of the United Office and Professional Workers?

R : Ye a h .

I: Do you know why it happened that way instead of the United Auto

Workers Office Workers?

R: Well, it would have been a company union, wouldn't it?

I: Well, doesn't UAW have its own branch for salaried workers?

R : Y e s .

I : Y e a h .

R: But different types of salaried people. Engineers or they are into

doctors and professors and everything else now. They've got some

universities almost signed up for teachers and what not.

I: So was that United Office and Professional Workers Union a pretty

effective union for the women in the offices?

R: Well as an officer I always used to think we'd be fair. In fact the

former officer that did most of the negotiating for our local union

with them whatever we had on the bargaining table with the company he

would give to the girls and tell the company to shoot it at that, you

know. So our girls had a contract far in excess of any comparable

girls anywhere. 35 hour work week was initiated.

I : Oh yeah .

R: Oh yeah.

I: Okay. Well can you tell me a litt le bit about the type of work that

you did in the River Rouge, when you came to work here?

R: Well, my father worked in the motor building on a crankshaft line.

Now he never weighed more than 135 pounds in his life and he used to

come home at night so darn exhausted that he would just about go wash

up come down and eat and he would lay on the couch and listen to Amos



J o h n O r r J

and Andy and Kate Smith who were the tops in radio at that time; up to

bed, to get ready for work, and my mother kept saying; "you two boys,"

I have a brother a year and a half older than me," are never going to

suffer what your father d id. When you are 14, I 'm going to take you,

or 12, the application age was 12, to Henry Ford Trade School," which

she did. As each of us reached the age of 12, we went up to Highland

Park, adjacent to the Ford factory in Highland Park on Woodward

avenue, to the t rade school .

I : Why d id your mother take that route in send ing you to a t rade schoo l

to work at Ford's? Was i t sort of assumed that you would be at Ford's

at some time?

R: No, she d idn ' t mind us go ing to Ford 's but she d idn ' t want us work ing

on a product ion l ine l ike her husband, coming home so physical ly beat

e v e r y n i g h t .

I : S o s h e w a s j u s t g i v i n g y o u a s k i l l .

R: She knew some skilled tradesmen among her friends and what not who

l ived a normal l i fe. Now my dad had a hard way. See I 'm foreign

born . I don ' t know i f you know. I 'm f rom Canada. I came over here

at the age of 9 and the way we came, my father led an aborted Alberta

s t r i ke i n a r ubbe r p l an t back i n Na r i t on , On ta r i o . We l i ved i n a

house that was built by the rubber company. He was a bootmaker and

no t a t i r emake r. Th i s was a boo tmake r ou t fi t . He s ta r ted a un ion

then that subsequently has become the United Rubber Worker's Union.

And he organized i t pretty wel l and they decided to go on a str ike one

day and the plant was bui l t in four stor ies and he worked on the top

making boots, and at a given signal they were supposed to go from the

fou r th floo r down the s ta i r s , no e leva to r, and each succeed ing floo rs
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join in the walkout. Well, I'm too young to remember all the details,

but when he and one other guy started down the isle the other workers

started looking at each other and some started to follow, bosses were

looking, they ran back to their job and my father and this guy started

down the stairs; the other guy got to the first step and he ran back

and went to his job and my father walked down and when they saw him

alone at the third floor, second floor, nobody joined. He walked out

and walked home and our home was owned by the rubber factory. Well,

they offered to reinstate him if he would sign allegiance to the

company, swear that he would never again join a union, organize or

walk out, and he refused. So he was just about blackballed in the

rubber industry in Canada. He came here and got in the auto industry.

I: What year was that he was organizing in rubber?

R: 1923 I believe this occurred. And we came to, he came first and then

sent for us. I came here my citizenship papers show January 25, 1924

and I was 9 on January 2. At any rate my brother and I both went to

trade school. He went at age 14 and I followed a year and a half

later at age 14. There were many good things to say about Henry Ford

Trade School but there were a lot of things that the old man was given

credit for that weren't quite true. Maybe he meant well. I don't

know and that was always the thing that kept the Ford workers from

organizing till 4 years after GM and Chrysler were organized. "If

only the old man knew he would do something about it. It was the

lesser bosses and whatnot that impose all these indignities and all

this mess."

I: Was that just because of the way his image was portrayed over the

media—?
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R : Y e s .

I: And the project that he embarked on?

R: I think so, yes. At any rate, I thought I was being impossed on, and

I went to Henry Ford Trade School. It was very good. I started at

15* an hour but that is not wages. That was a scholarship they paid

you.

I : How long did that last?

R: Well, you worked four years. You worked in the shop end of the school

two weeks and then went to school one week. So we got very little

schooling and I have always been ashamed of my grammar and what not,

on that account because we had so little of it.

I: About age 12 you finished your regular school—

R: No, I was in Cass Tech High at 12 for 2 years. And I went in the

Henry Ford Trade School at 14 until the age of 18. At any rate they

operated in violation of the law because schools were allowed, trade

schools were allowed, with industry, if the products they made were

not used in the industry that was sponsoring that school. Well, it

was so blatant what he was doing. Are you familiar with production

lines where the trolleys run, conveyers run along on trolleys and what

not?

I: Well, I have an idea in my head. I have never seen it.

R: We had a trolley repair department and if you ever saw kids work

repair, on my God. I myself worked on valves and they were from stead

valves with gates that big, that operated in the powerhouses and what

not to l i t t le things so big. Very l i t t le on rubber valves l ike you

change a washer at home and most of them were metal. Some were so

small and then when you had to send them to take the marks out where
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it was quite evident where the leaks were and you had to sand those

out . H i t them wi th a red lead and b lue lead, b lack lead in to each

other so they made i t . I t was a male and female part you know. Your

fingers were l ike sandpaper. I 'd came home wi th b lood oozing out o f

t h e m . I g o t b i t t e r i n t h e r e . A l t h o u g h I l e a r n e d a l o t , I ' l l h a v e t o

say. I was l ea rn ing t o ope ra te l a the I don ' t know i f you a re f am i l i a r

with machine shop parts, lathes and mil l ing machines and what not and

at the age of 18, 4 years we spend in the trade school, at the age of

1 8 i n t o t h e f a c t o r y o n a f a c t o r y .

I : Wa s t h a t a n a u t o m a t i c j o b ?

R : No . Eve rybody t ha t came th rough t he t r ade schoo l d i dn ' t ge t i n t o t he

factory. I t depended on whether they needed, you went in there as an

appren t ice . I was an appren t ice too lmaker. My bro ther was an

apprentice dye/maker. But I was up to then, we got an increase if we

kept up with our shop work and our school work, a penny every six

weeks or whatever the term was. But at any rate when I went to the

employment office at Gate 2, now you probably heard about Ford in the

m idd le 1915s o r ' 16s es tab l i sh a five -hou r wo rkday, o r five -do l l a r

workday. That 's just so much poppycock. You had to go through so

many qua l i fica t ions . They had a soc io log ica l depar tmen t se t up tha t

examined your needs for the money whether you were clean l iv ing. I f

you had a boarder in the house, because that boarder was actually

taking care of the woman of the house while her husband is at work.

They had so many. They could come in your house anytime of the day

and what not. At any rate I was making 41* an hour is what they

ca l led a scho larsh ip and never ca l led i t wages. Because you weren ' t

supposed to work in a factory around any moving machinery unti l you
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were 18. We were s tudents and on a scholarsh ip. I f you forgot your

badge on payday, for instance and you needed it, many times my brother

was layed off and my father was layed off and we really needed the

money, I ' d l i s ten I wou ld no t i ce the t reasure r o f the t rade schoo l

would give some guys a check and some not. And I'm wondering what is

i t , I didn't br ing my badge and I 'm here they told me i f you make

p r o p e r a p p l i c a t i o n a n d l o o k g r e a t y o u g e t i t . S o I g o t c l o s e t o i t

and the treasurer looked at one kid and he said, what do you want, and

he said, I want my paycheck I forgot my badge today and he says come

back monday when you got your badge to get your paycheck. The next

kid said, I want ray scholarship fund and I forgot my badge today and

they told me you could issue a paper badge for me to get through the

res t o f t he day and i ssue my check . Yes s i r. So I flashed tha t .

Scho la rsh ip fund . A t any ra te go ing in to the fac to ry a t the age o f 18
to

in 1933 they said wel l we got to raise your wages you're not a fu l l

fl e d g e d f a c t o r y t o o l m a k e r a p p r e n t i c e . T h e y r a i s e d i t t o 4 2 - 1 / 2 c e n t s

an hour. Within three months I was cut to 32-1/2 cents an hour and

was consoled with the fact that journeymen toofcmakers were only making

30 cents an hour and Dearborn welfare families when the adult was

working at Fbrd's and they got a dol lar a day working at Ford to

supplement what they got from welfare.

I : Why did the company or ig inal ly pay you 42 and then drop?

R : W e l l , i t w a s t h e d e p r e s s i o n . T h i r t y - t h r e e w a s s t i l l t h e d e p r e s s i o n .

I : And you came in a t 32?

R : T h i r t y - t h r e e .

I : T h i r t y - t h r e e ?

R : W i t h t h e f a c t o r y .
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I: Yeah, with 42 cents they paid you and then they cut it after that?

R : Y e s .

I: Just because everybody was getting wage cuts?

R: Uh huh. The day I got layed off, I received 50 cents an hour on my

pay because Roosevelt had introduced the NRA, I don't know if you are

familiar with that, National Recovery Act and that was a minimum pay.

So I got layed off and got a raise in pay. But we had suffered a lot

of indignities. You must have heard it so many times. Do this, do

that, no if you protest it was either Miller Road is the nearest

street, that's where the employment office was, hit Miller Road. Or

sometimes they didn't even tell you to do it or else just fire you.

Quite evident. It was so evident to most of us or not enough of us at

the time I should have said. But you couldn't buck that outfit alone.

So we were happy to hear about the UAW coming on the scene organizing
n

and that was late '36 a£d '37. They told you they organized Chrysler

and GM in '37, I'm sure you heard of the sitdown strikes and all this

and that. It still took four more years to convince the Ford workers

to join the union.

I: So who came into the shop as UAW organizers?

R: Most of it was done from within. Because the city of Dearborn passed

an anti-handbill ordinance, professional unionists couldn't even come

in the city gates and pass out literature and what not, it was against

the law. I'd just go to city gates and pass out literature and what

not, it was against the law. I'd just wait for them to come in, it

was always known when they were coming. Off to jail they went. So

that law was ruled unconstitutional and that let more in and they had

started having organizational meetings. I would give a lot of credit
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to the mine workers because i t was a lot of layoffs in the mines and

most of those guys headed for Detroit because the automobile business,

for awhile was booming and they hired in there.

I : W h i c h m i n e s w e r e l a y i n g o f f ?

R : C o a l m i n e s .

\ I : W h i c h m i n & s w e r e l a y i n g , o f f ?
\ \ XR: \ Coal mines.

I : I n P e n n s y l v a n i a ?

R : P e n n s y l v a n i a , m o s t l y, y e a h . Yo u w i l l fi n d a m o n g t h e o l d - t i m e r s m a n y

of the o r ig ina l o rgan izers in Ford were f rom the- i f ' coa l m ines . I 'm

sure you have heard of Percy Llewel lyn who died in Apr i l of th is year.

I : He was f rom the mines?

R: He was a member of the United Mine Workers but he never worked down

below. He worked upsta i rs on the depo. I gave the eu logy a t h is

funera l and I to ld the s to ry tha t he to ld me. I be long to the mine

workers but I was never down in the mines in my damn l i fe, he said. I

d idn' t put that coal down there and I ' l l be goddam i f I was going down

there and dig i t . No, he worked upstairs as a check weighman working

for the union checking the bosses weights. He was the foremost in the

mine. I remember work ing in the p lan t there .

I: Do you remember the names of some others who were in the mines. Oh

yeah , Mack C inzo r i . How do you spe l l i t . ? I s t ha t C in?

R : M a c k , t h a t ' s h i s fi r s t n a m e . T h a t ' s h i s l e g a l n a m e . C i n z o r i . M a c k

C i n z o r i .

I : Oh yeah, I have seen that name.

R : I ' m s u r e y o u h a v e .

I : D i d h e a c t u a l l y w o r k i n t h e m i n e ?
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R: Yes, he did. Oh yeah. Hey, they all did except Percy as far as I

know.

I: So they came in around the early 40s or late 30s into Ford.

R : L a t e 3 0 s , y e a h . T h e u n i o n g o t s o m e c o n c e p t o f t h e i n t h e

plant they established organizing locations in different parts of

Detroit, never in Dearborn to begin with because you couldn't show

there. Ford had their police department so locked up. He appointed

them, he appointed the chief and the mayor and everything else. And

on the border of Detroit where Ford it boardered Dearborn, you found

out about it by the underhand or current talk where the union hall was

went down and signed up. I went down and signed up in 1937 and I

immediately bitched because it was $1 initiation fee and $1 month

which was quite a chunk of money.

I: Was this the AFL you were with?

R: No. This was the original UAW.

I : C I O ?

R: Yes. There was an old bank building down Vernor highway in Detroit.

I: Who were some of the earlier people who were organizing at this stage

in UAW?

R: Oh there were so many.

I: Or some of the more important ones.

R: You know some of the ones that emerged in leadership aren't exactly

the ones that were doing the organizing work at the time. Well the

more important ones, of course, from the mine workers John L. became

president of the CIO, John L. Lewis of the Mine Workers. He lent

organizers to the UAW to work at Ford and the guy that was given

directorship of the Ford organizing drive from the mine workers, was
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named Mike Widman, Mike Widman. And the UAW as an organization had to

have a co-director. They wouldn' t le t the mine workers come in and do

i t a lone. His name was Dick Leanord, Richard T. Leonard. Later he

became the Ford Department director of the UAW, regional director and

v i ce p res i den t . Bu t t hey we re p ro fess i ona l s i f you ca l l t hem, t hey

were working for $35 a week but they were working ful l t ime for the

union. I t was guys in the shop they never got a penny that were doing

the rea l work , Mack C inzor i fo r ins tance. He was on ly appren t ice , h is

neck was out so far organizing, so was mine but let somebody else tel l

you abou t t ha t . And Pe rcy ' s he was fi red f o r un ion ac t i v i t y. He was

beat up by the cops. It was over 2,000 when we got recognit ion by the

company final ly in 41 there was at least 2500 Nat ional Labor Relat ions

cases . Peop le fi red fo r un ion ac t i v i t y o rgan iz ing and wha t have you .

Twenty -five hundred .

I : Wa s B i l l M c K i e a n i m p o r t a n t fi g u r e ?

R : Ye s , y e s , y e s . A n " a v o u t " / s i c ? c o m m u n i s t . T h a t w a s p a r t o f i t .

Everybody l iked Bi l l and they hated communism. Wel l , not everybody

hated communism. They knew what he was. He never pretended. And as

a mat ter o f fact a f ter the Taf t Har t ly Law came in B i l l was back in

the plant he was elected local trustee and had to resign because he

c o u l d n o t s i g n t h e a n t i - c o m m u n i s t a f fi d a v i t t o r e t a i n l o c a l o f fi c e .

And he said he 'd he damned i f he 'd d is-avow his communist affi l ia t ion.

I : Why was he we l l l i ked in the shop?

R: He was a lot older than most of us and he talked sense and he l ived,

you know he wasn' t t ry ing to organize a union for h is own financia l

benefi t o r th i s and tha t because i f eve r a guy l i ved f ruga l i t was

Bi l l McKie. He never owned a car, to my knowledge in his l i fe and he
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used to get his bundle of paper and peddle them in the neighborhoods

and whatnot. I remember one time a guy saw him going and thought he'd

give him a lift. He stopped at the curb put his window down and said

hey Bill, can I give you a lift. Bill said no I'm in a hurry and he

w e n t p l o d d i n g d o w n a n d . B u t i n t h e t a i l e n d o f

1940 we were pretty well organized. I forgot to tell you now that I

started to make the confession, in 1937 I joined and whatnot but I

dropped out because I had subsequent layoffs, couldn't afford to pay

and thought it was too much and I had already given indication where

my feelings were and whatnot. I didn't rejoin until the early part of

1940.

I: They didn't have some kind of provision for reducing the dues for

layoff?

R: No. Now today when they are organizing a new plant you don't go in

and make those people pay initiation fees and dues right off the bat.

You hold that in abeyance until you get them a contract. But they

didn't do it in those days. Well they do today. I think Emil Mazey

was responsible for that. As a matter of fact when a plant goes on

strike now for the initial contract maybe the workers in three haven't

paid a penny in and initiation fees or dues, but if they go on strike

in support of a new contract or a first contract, they get on the UAW

strike fund. But not in those days. Those dues were only $1.

I : Lack of resources?

R: Oh . And yet when they organized Ford they had some 80,000

members in the Rouge plant alone. My God you were dealing with

$80,000 a month. You got rich overnight. Well, you wanted to talk
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about democracy in Local 600. I don't know quite what you had in

mind.

I: Let me just progress one step at a time. The next thing is just

describe the unit that you were a member of.

R: I served an apprenticeship as a toolmaker in 711X it was in the

foundry machine shop. What you know now as the tool and dye unit then

used to be just the tool and dye building. It was a tool and dye

building with about 4,000 people in it who build all the new tools and

dyes but then there was a tool room and a dye room in every building

where there was many machine operations because they had to put those

new tools, they did some construction work, yes quite a bit in the

larger ones, but they had to put those tools and dyes into machines

and whatnot and make them operable and then maintain them.

I: About how big of a group of workers would that be?

R: Well, for instance there were 1200 in the d#e room in the Dearborn

Stamping plant. It was then known as the Press Steel building. I get

confused with these names now. In the Rolling Mill where they used to

make the forgings and the frames for the cars, there were 1100.

I: Just in the dye room?

R: Just in the dye room within that building. In the foundry they had a

large machine repair contingent and flask (?) repairmen and

patternmakers because patterns were always associated with foundry

operations.
i

I: So about how many men were in your tool and dye division of the

machine foundry shop?

R: When the union could, well at one time we were 100 and something but
r

no hold it, they started that new tool and dye building because we
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were a l l do ing const ruc t ion work w i th in our own bu i ld ings. When they

star ted the new too l and dye bu i ld ing, they d id the bu lk o f the

construct ion work and drained the men and work from those bui ldings,

now my tool room went down to less than 300 people from a high of

1100. So we were mostly a repair gang.

I : What was the year that they opened the too l and d^e shop i tse l f?

R : I t h i n k i t w a s t h e l a t t e r p a r t o f 1 9 3 9 o r 1 9 4 0 . We s t a r t e d t h e l e n d

lease wi th England. With lend lease you know wi th the destroyers (?)

to Br i ta in and th is and that we were prepar ing for a war don ' t le t

anybody k id you. Ford sa id he could bu i ld a i rp lanes on a product ion

basis just l ike he did autos. And my brother worked in that he was a

dfye maker leader one of the youngest over in the new tool and dfe

bu i l d i ng , and they b rough t i n b l uep r i n t s t he re w ing fix tu res and

whatnot for these engine bombers. And he was one of the whiz bids

selected to go to San Diego and learn assembly methods there. Ford

sent a crew of his own out there. They spent months and months there

wh i l e t hey were bu i l d i ng . The w i l l ow run bomber p lan t . You weren ' t

very far f rom there, where you are staying. I t 's now a GM assembly

p lan t , bu t i t ' s t he o r i g i na l Fo rd W i l l ow run bombe r p l an t . See he ,

when he came back he immediately went on supervision because those

guys were down there to learn and then come back and supervise others

t h a t ' s w h y h e w a s . B u t y o u s a i d y o u h a d h e a r d o f m e b e i n g

part of the organiz ing, I was when the, before the NLRB elect ion in

Apr i l o f 1941, I had over two- th i rds o f the , and I wasn ' t a lone, and

al l those guys down the street there, I damn near invi ted them up

three of them volunteer organizer and whatnot . We had over two- th i rds
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of the members signed up in the UAW. And I can't tell you how many

members were signed up in all the others or not because—

I: Your tool and dye—

R: My department in the machine shop. No I wish that record had been as

good in the tool and dye building as a whole. They were mostly red

apples. They were far from that record. I was negotiating wages and

some working conditions before the union was recognized. We took, at

a given signal one day we all lit cigarettes, that was someting new in

the Ford Motor Company. Different things we used to do to

demonstrate, you know. Always under threat, but the movement had

grown so much. Now these bosses they just wanted to get by, you know.

They were getting production or their work out, boy they tolerated

more and more all the time.

I: Well, why do you think that the men in production in the foundry

machine shop were receptive to the union whereas the tool and dye shop

you mentioned was not so much so?

R: Well, working conditions mainly. It was the newest and largest tool

and dfe room in the world. Bar none. And they were catered to.

There weren't too many. There were some including Mack Cinzori who

was an apprentice there at the time. There weren't too many that

emerged as ourselves, from that original group that emerged as union

leaders.

I: And how did those conditions compare to yours in the production?

R: Well, we could see what was going on in production, Holy mackerel. I

knew then when I left the trade school and went in the factory, I was

more impressed than ever what my mother meant by saying, "You boys are

going to be tradesmen not production workers because, they were like
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animals, my God. Even today everybody thinks it's easy in a Ford

factory, even today if you can get a trip through the Ford assembly

plant and see those guys, they are like robots themselves—putting

nuts on, putting bolts on, doing this and that. How the hell they

stand the trade art it would drive me nuts. I couldn't have ever

worked in there on production. They do it. Sometimes you ask a guy

why and he says, I'm not doing that, I'm building a home or a cottage

or something. He says my mind is far away. He's just doing this

automatically. I don't know how they can robotize themselves like

that. But anyway, we were surrounded by good union people, the

production workers were the ones who knew they needed a union. Don't

forget by that time we had many examples of what we were suffering.

The production workers in some phases of work in Chrysler and GM were

making more than the tool and dye makers in Ford. Not all, but some.

But you never knew how much the guy next to you was making. It was no

set wage scale and this and that like there is now. So he could be

making more and he wasn't about to tell you because if he was making

more he didn't want you going to the boss and saying I'm as good as

this guy, so there was jealousies all over the place but when I took a

wage survey in early '40 and found out that, oh we were way underpaid.

I: The UAW did a wage survey?

R: They sent sheets in there to all the stewards on the job and in

departments, you know, and took a survey that way. But you had to go

to the individual worker and ask him what he was making whatnot in

order to complete the survey. Some were reluctant to tell you, some

were so ashamed. Oh my God. A guy, I was an apprentice by that time,



J o h n O r r 1 7

may be making a $1 or $1.05 an hour. We had journeymen in there

making 95—954.

I: Does the international have the result of that survey, do you think?

R: They did have, now whether they've got it now or not. Well they

knew—well certainly their leaflets and everything showed how much

less Ford workers were making, yes they have it.

I: This was in 1940 you say?

R: Yeah. Oh, earlier than that but I think they were more or less

guessing before that because this was as I remember the first big

survey they ever took. And boy that's when a whole lot of us got in

trouble because we were really going behind the NLRB then. Our right

to organize and do this and that and our leaflets was going beyond

interviewing Ford workers and asking questions like that, you know.

I: How was that so? What other things were on the—

R: What was wrong?

I: No what else besides asking the wages were you doing A£with the

leaflets and the questionnaires?

R: Well just going up to a worker on company time and ask him to join.

I : O h .

R: Most places you had a paid company lunch period. You weren't even

free under the law to do it during that period because you were on the

company payroll. And even when they had the half hour lunch period

unpaid, well they'd still grab you for doing it but a lot of the NLRB

cases came from there or were from such incidences as that, where the

law said we were free to do it. Ford had another problem that

Chrysler and GM didn't at the time. We probably had the largest

percentage of, the decent word to say then was Negroes.—Negro
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employees and the any o f the o thers , and they were infi l t ra t ing jobs

that were only held by Whites throughout the years and very few of

them were in GM or Chrysler 's. They had been relegated to foundry

work , Shove l ing sand, pour ing s tee l , c leanup jobs in the o ther

p r o d u c t i o n b u i l d i n g s w h e r e t h o s e d a n g e r o u s t h i n g s •

Final ly Fbrd started to put a few in the tool and dye rooms as models.

And demonst ra ted infi l t ra t ing the assembly l ines and whatnot w i th

them.

I : We l l , w h a t d o y o u t h i n k h i s i n c e n t i v e t o d o t h i s w a s .

R: Help break the un ion, I th ink, because most o f them looked at Mr. Ford

as the i r emanc ipator, no t Mr. L inco ln . He was ly ing them on jobs tha t

they had never had before. They never did have a vote or never did

give a breakdown on how the Whites voted and the Blacks. The NRLB

d o e s n ' t c o n d u c t t h e e l e c t i o n s l i k e t h a t . B u t w e c o u l d h a v e t o l d i f

they would give the figures by bui ldings because we knew the bui ldings

that were predominate ly B lack l i ke the foundry.

I : T h e p r o d u c t i o n f o u n d r y ? H o w d i d t h e y v o t e i n t h a t ?

R : N o b o d y e v e r r e v e a l e d i t .

I : W h a t ' s y o u r i m p r e s s i o n ?

R: I say about 50-50 . Because the overa l l vo te in Rouge p lan t was two-

th i r ds f o r t he UAW. O f cou rse i t p robab l y wasn ' t a l l B l ack e i t he r.

Most o f the Whi tes were fore ign born I ta l ians , Mal tese.

I : D id you th ink tha t the ro le o f the B lacks changed over the years f rom

them being more pro-Ford and against the union to something else later

on?

R : Ye s , i t d i d f o r s e v e r a l r e a s o n s . I t ' s h a r d t o e x p l a i n . T h e r e w e r e

new avenues opened to them, you know, posit ions of leadership, even i f
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it was a job steward in his own department it was something he had

never a t ta ined , in h is l i f e be fo re o r on the barga in ing commi t tee ,

bargain ing for severa l thousand of h is subord inates, Chai rman of the

building and what not. Oh yeah they seized upon that because

regard less o f what Ford pu t in the p roduc t ion , in t roduc ing in the

p roduc t i on o the r t h i ngs , t hey d id no t i n t roduce h im i n to sa la r i ed

personnel . So there were very few job opening on supervis ion or on

tha t o rde r. The She l ton Tappes you ' re ta l k i ng abou t , t h i s i s an as ide

f rom the i ssue , he i s e lec ted record ing secre ta ry o f the loca l un ion

in 1942. That was the fi rs t year we a t ta ined loca l un ion autonomy.

In o ther words the r igh t to e lec t our own o fficers and whatnot . We

were under UAW di rectorsh ip. He s tar ted issu ing but tons and they

showed up at the foundry. Whi le I was job s teward there was d is t r ic t

committeeman, bargaining committeeman, chairman and then he started

issue ing o the r bu t tons . Bu t tons a re impor tan t , you know.

I : W h y i s t h a t ?

R: You mean something. You belong to something or you are somebody, you

got to go read them. He not only issued buttons for the committeemen

and ge t t i ng c reden t ia l s , the re wou ld be an a l te rna te commi t tee . There

would be a guide and an alternate guide and what not. And most of

those guys had the i r bosses so ld that they were fu l l - t ime un ion reps.

And that was to the extent they cou ld get away wi th i t . I f anybody

wore a badge, man, he was a wheel.

I : D id t ha t ca t ch on a t any o f t he o the r shops?

R: No, hey the Ford whee ls found out about tha t . They knocked tha t ou t

p re t t y qu i ck . I t was much cheape r, I ' l l t e l l you i n 1946 , i t was much

cheaper for the company to go to ful l - t ime pay committeemen than i t
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was to allow the job steward system to exist the way it was because a

good job steward could invent more reasons for being off a job, invent

greivances or do something else to get off the job. Oh, there were

abuses, I don't hide that. So when the company went to full-time

committeemen, paid by the company.

I: What was the difference, were there fewer than there when they were

stewards?

R : Y e s .

I: How did the company save?

R: Well they figured one full-time committeeman for each 250 men.

I: And how was it under the steward system?

R: Oh my God, every department regardless of size had a department

committeeman and he always had an alternate and just whatever they

could get away with. So we had some good ones and some bad ones, you

know. Some of the loafers decided that was a good way to get off the

job. I can't for the life of me say that they were all good union

people.

I: How did the plant set up at Ford's, being the biggest employing unit

around with all those different buildings and how did that affect the

interaction that workers had? Did they socialize or talk with each

other from their different building units, or did they mainly keep

within their own buildings?

R: No. They kept within their own buildings because there was no way

they could socialize or fraternalize during the work day in there, and

we held local union meetings at Cass Tech, we always get a big hall we

try to hold local union meetings, and really it was democracy out of

the window because there you would have 18 different buildings coming
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in there, each with maybe a common peeve but each with a separate

peeve too, trying to get attention, the others for support, and

everything else. They were so unwielding that they formed a General

Council. Each building had its own autonomy like the foundry machine

shop had a President, bargaining committee, their own officers, a

limited autonomy, of course, it was a limit on what they could do. A

portion of the dues were given to them, that was to maintain an office

in the local union, that paid expenses and chairman and whatnot. And

a General Council deal was figured so that all the, well I'd say there

was 18 units at the time I believe that figure is fairly close. Based

on their population elected deligates to this General Council just

like the states here send delegates to the Congress proportionately.

I: Was that a big honor to get elected to the General Council?

R: Yes, but what you found was, it was a nonpaying job, so the meetings,

most of the times during the war we were working six days a week, the

meetings were generally held on a Sunday. That meant probably given

up your only day off during the week and as I said voluntary. I would

say a good portion of the General Council to began with was secondary

leadership. Because the guys that had organized were in top

leadership. Their wives and family were so sick of them going out

nights organizing and doing this and that all for the union for

nothing. I think they had heat at home, no more jobs, not another day

of the week, or whatnot, so the real dyed-in-the wool guy he was

there, he ran for election, and was there. That was one job where all

of the top leadership in the buildings worked there.

I: How does that compare with the executive board?
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R: The Execut ive Board is compr ised o f 9 o r 10 loca l o fficers and the

p res iden t o f each un i t .

I : So they were pa id to a t t end , wh i l e t hey were a t tend ing the i r mee t i ngs

they were being paid?

R: The cha i rmen o f the bu i ld ings are pa id fo r. They are on the company

payro l l . And they ge t the i r necessary expenses f rom the loca l un ion .

I : So they don' t work in a shop anymore af ter they have become president

o f t h e i r u n i t ?

R : O h t h e y a r e r e q u i r e d t o r i n g a t i m e c a r d i n t h e p l a n t . A l l t h e r u l e s

say at least once a day they got to r ing in the morning or in the

afternoon. Once a day they have to have a card r ing.

I : D o t h e y a c t u a l l y d o p r o d u c t i o n w o r k o r —

R : N o , n o , t h e y a r e f u l l - t i m e f o r t h e u n i o n . T h e y a r e i n t h e r e

overseeing the contract and overseeing the stewards that operate in

the var ious departments. And each of those whatever the uni ts are by

number, I don't know may be down to 14 now, each of those have

separa te loca l un i t agreements .

I : Did they have those way back in the 40s?

R: Yes . I n the l a t te r 40s yes because we neve r had p lan tw ide senor i t y

for instance and each bui ld ing had to go in there and establ ish an

occupat iona l g roup senor i ty sys tem.

I : Do you th ink that there are much d i f ferences between agreements worked

out between the uni ts and the company? From unit to uni t—

R: No t on wages . They weren ' t a l l owed to nego t i a te wages i n t he l a t t e r

stages. That was done by the nat ional Ford Department. We get

un i fo rm wages na t iona l l y.
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I: So seniority was worked out with the individual in units, anything

else?

R: Oh yes. Working conditions. Some buildings had continuous Sunday

operations for instance. At the glass plant you can't cut off a

ribbon of glass Saturday and Sunday and start on Monday. The ribbon

of glass runs all the time. Those furnaces run all the time and

somebody has to be there to do them. So that's what you call

continuous sevenday operation. The same with steel. You note that

steel, you're in a malleable condition and send it down those rollers

and make necessary steel plates or sheets. You don't shut that off

during the weekends.

I: Do you think any of individual units were able to negotiate stronger

or better contracts?

R: Than others?

I : Y e a h .

R: To begin with. Yes. Some were able to get a paid lunch period,

others weren't. But the worse of it is in those days they never got

it in writing. Some of those agreements. When the company cut them

off, after a few years, those unis went to arbitration, Dr. Harry

Shulman was the Uinpire for the Ford UAW at the time.

I: What was he a doctor of?

R: A doctor of law. He was Dean of the Yale Law School wasn't he?

I: I 've read some of his decisions—

R: Yeah he was one of the wheels in the National Labor Relations Board

when they started a War Labor Board, oh he was quite a figure. Have

you ever read any of his—his umpire decisions are in bound volumes.

I: Yeah I have seen those.
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R: Master p ieces, most o f them. You can learn f rom them at any ra te .

But that was when he made one of his famous quotes when these guys

from different bui ldings come out and say we had negotiated paid lunch

per iod. Where is the agreement . We don' t have one, i t was a verbal

agreement. That 's when in one of h is opinions, and he said an

unwr i t t en ag reemen t i sn ' t wo r t h t he pape r i t ' s no t w r i t t en on . He

threw them al l out . Percy Llewel lyn was chairman of the motor

building at the time and he had one on writing and I don't know how

b u t t h a t w a s i n c l u d e d i n ? ,

I : Pe rcy L lewe l l yn ' s shop had a s t rong un i t ag reemen t?

R : Yeah . Yes and no . I wo rked i n a bu i l d i ng whe re t he re we re t oo l

makers on the floor. The company wan ted to es tab l i sh c lass i fica t ion

o f fixed repa i r, I sa id no way. Tha t k i nd o f r epa i r s , and I knew the

background on those, and, he made i t . Fixed repair they wanted to pay

a d ime an hour less. Motor bui ld ing a l lowed them to have that

c l a s s i fi c a t i o n . T h e o n l y b u i l d i n g i n t h e w h o l e p l a n t w h e r e fi x e d

repair, the guy who maintained tools was al lowed. So that was why

there had to be some semblance of control over what one building, one

bui ld ing couldn' t go in there and undercut what another one was doing.

Even today you know that the national agreement with Ford is hold by

th e i n t e r n a t i o n a l u n i o n , n o t t h e l o c a l u n i o n . Th e l o c a l u n i o n s h a v e

agreements but they can' t contradic t the master agreement. They can

supplement and add to i t , they can ' t subt rac t f rom.

I : How abou t o the r aspec ts o f the labor -management re la t ions w i th in the

d i f f e r e n t b u i l d i n g u n i t s . D o y o u t h i n k t h a t t h e y d i f f e r e d ?

R : We l l , p e o p l e a r e p e o p l e . S o m e b o s s e s t r i e d t o g e t a l o n g , t h e y t r i e d ,

they were taken to schoo l . O thers car r ied on the figh t , they were so
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bi t ter ant i -un ion nobody was go ing to te l l them how topun the i r

department and whatnot . And that fight went on for so long and the

union was real ly at a disadvantage because, contract was signed, the

ini t ia l contract was signed on June 20, 1941 and i f we weren' t at war

we were the closest thing to i t because Pearl Harbor happened

December 7. And the UAW was one of the first unions to rush into a

no-st r ike p ledge. So some of these foremen just ran hog wi ld . Some

of the super in tendents, what could you do about i t , you know. You

cou ldn ' t use t he s t r i ke . Oh we had many w i l dca t s t r i kes a l l r i gh t .

In ternat ional un ion couldn ' t author ize them and sent you back to work.

I : Wel l can you remember where some of these bel l igerent foremen, vs. the

more easy going foremen, which bui ldings they were in.

R : W e l l , o f c o u r s e I w a s r e s t r i c t e d . I o n l y w o r k e d i n t h e f o u n d r y

m a c h i n e s h o p t o o l r o o m . B u t t h e y s t i l l fl o a t e d i n t h e b r e e z e , l i k e

the h i ghe r ups . We l l , maybe t h i s w i l l be a po in t . Hen ry Fo rd I , t he

or ig inal was a st rong Mason, I don ' t know i f you knew that or not . So

throughout that t ime Masons became the head of most of the buildings

and so the secondary leadership. When Henry Ford II assumed the

presidency, he was released from, what was he, in the navy?, in the

early 40s to come back and take over chairmanship of the Ford Motor

Company because it was in a hell of a mess. He had already turned

Catho l i c and mar r ied tha t O 'Conne l g i r l tha t he mar r ied . We l l you

would be surprised when he became head of that thing. The foreman and

super intendents had switched to Cathol ic ism. They went f rom Masons to

kn igh ts o f Co lumbus . You wou ldn ' t t h ink tha t wen t on . I t wen t on .

And o f course tha t en tered in to po l i t i cs in the un ion too , you know.

The Masons against the Cathol ics. Henry McCusker, you talk to, was
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one of the officers in the Association of Catholic Trade Unionists.

He worked in the plant.

I: Did Ford II 's assuming the presidency l i f t the Association of Catholic

Trade Unionists to a higher position?

R: Yes. No question about it. Because until then you never heard much

about them.

I: You don't think they had much power before Ford II came in?

R: I never knew about it.

I: How about Paul Ste. Marie, was he involved with it?

R: He was from the tool and d^e building and he was after we got our

autonomy he was the first elected president of the local. But some of

the things he did because the UAW then as now was just as dedicated to

backing Democratic candidates and—

I: So how about other types of characterizations of the different

building units, could you characterize some as having more skilled

workers or having more blacks?

R : W e l l t h e t o o l a n d d i e p l a n t w a s c e r t a i n l y t h e m o s t i n t h e

Rouge plant and most highly skilled. Because when you get into the

engineering fields and whatnot they were out of the realm of the

union. They weren't, they were exempt, so they were pattern makers,

tool and d#e makers were the highest skilled at the time, dye makers.

I: How about some of the other buildings, were there some that had a very

low proportion of skilled workers?

R: Well, yes the assembly plants, the engine plants.

I: Assembly and engine. You got the motor included in that too?

R: Well, the engine plant, the motor building they used to call that one

on Miller Road the motor building, and of course the name's improper.
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When they bu i l t what was formal ly the a i rc ra f t eng ine bu i ld ing on the

o ther s ide o f the p lan t went in to p roduc t ion , au tomob i le eng ines a f te r

the war and that became known as the engine plant and not the motor

bu i l d ing . A l l t he worke rs f rom the moto r bu i l d ing answered , we l l wha t

could we absorb, numbers were dropped from 14,000 to less than half.

Lines were automated el iminating manpower. You know what automation

is I guess.

I : O h y e a h . S o m o s t o f t h e o t h e r b u i l d i n g s u n i t s w e r e b a s i c a l l y

d i v i d e d —

R : W e l l t h e r e i s s k i l l t o m a k i n g s t e e l . I c a n ' t d e n y y o u t h a t . M y G o d ,

n o I w o u l d n ' t w a n t t o . M a k i n g s t e e l i n t h o s e fi r s t r o l l e r s a n d

wha tno t mak ing tha t s tee l . Oh they were sk i l l ed i n t he i r own r i gh t .

I : S o t h e r e w a s a h i g h p r o p o r t i o n o f s k i l l i n t h o s e b u i l d i n g s .

R : I n t h e r o l l i n g m i l l w a s t h e h i g h e s t , I w o u l d s a y, p r o p o r t i o n o f o t h e r

sk i l l ed workers . Then the t ranspor ta t ion un i t you had au to mechan ics

and s t i l l had t ruck mechan ics bu t the i r appren t i ceab le t rades

i n c i d e n t l y i n F o r d ' s . A n d t h o s e d i e s e l e n g i n e s , F o r d s t i l l o w n s a

ra i l road, you know, those d iesel engines are repai red by Ford

tradesman known as diesel engine and heavy equipment operator

mechan i cs . Tha t ' s an app ren t i ceab le t r ade . A good po r t i on o f

t r a n s p o r t a t i o n u n i t s a r e s k i l l e d w o r k e r s .

I : H o w a b o u t t h e c h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n o f t h e l e a d e r s h i p i n t h e d i f f e r e n t

uni ts , were there some uni ts that tended to e lect more r ight wing vs.

l e f t w i n g — ?

R : Ye s . I t ' s k i n d o f h a r d t o e x p l a i n w h y b u t i t w a s t r u e .

I : I f I asked you about each uni t would you be able to g ive me a general

impress ion on whe ther they were r igh t o r l e f t o r cen te r o r sh i f t i ng?
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R : We l l , mos t o f t hem sh i f t ed one t o t he o the r.

I : A re t he re any ou t s tand ing as be ing p redominan t l y l e f t w ing o r

p redominan t l y r igh t w ing?

R: Casting machine shop, I said foundary machine shop, that was the name

of i t when I was in there. I t became known as the casting machine

shop l a te r— tha t was gene ra l l y l e f t t h rough d i f f e ren t cha i rmen o r

pres iden ts . Un i t p res iden t ' s , some ca l l them cha i rmen, some ca l l them

a u n i t p r e s i d e n t . M o t o r b u i l d i n g w a s g e n e r a l l y o f t h e l e f t t r e n d .

Press steel, that's where Lee Romano was. The assembly plant was

g e n e r a l l y r i g h t . I t o u t s o m e o f t h e h a r d e s t w o r k i n g j o b s

working there. Why a guy should work in there should be a r ight-

w inge r, I don ' t know.

I : A n d t h e y h a v e m o s t l y l o w s k i l l s , r i g h t ?

R : Y e s .

I : W h a t a b o u t t h e r a c i a l c o m p o s i t i o n i n t h a t b u i l d i n g ?

R : R i g h t n o w i t ' s p r e d o m i n a n t l y B l a c k b u t i t w a s b e i n g i n fi l t r a t e d ,

tha t ' s what I to ld you o f a cer ta in o rgan iza t iona l per iod when they

were work ing, they were ass imi la t ing them in there.

I : So dur ing the la te 40s say, what k inds o f p ropor t ions do you th ink was

B l a c k i n t h a t b u i l d i n g ?

R : O h , m o s t o f i t i s s t i l l W h i t e i n t h e l a t e 4 0 s .

I : S o 1 0 - 1 5 p e r c e n t B l a c k , s o m e t h i n g l i k e t h a t ?

R : Ye a h , b u t i t s t a r t e d t o c l i m b m o r e .

I : Wa s t h a t t h e o n l y p r e d o m i n a n t l y r i g h t b u i l d i n g ?

R : W h a t ?

I : T h e B b u i l d i n g ?
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R: No. Some o f them, the Ax le bu i ld ing was r igh t w ing to beg in w i th , and

then i t swi tched to le f t , tha t 's why I say some of them swi tched, w i th

the same personnel there, i t was jus t d i f ferent leaders emerged.

I : W h a t a b o u t t h e a i r c r a f t u n i t ?

R : We l l t ha t was in Wi l l ow Run . A i r c ra f t bomber was a separa te l oca l

uni t and that wasn' t 600. The only a i rcraf t uni t we had in Rouge was

a i r c r a f t e n g i n e s .

I : Ye a h , d u r i n g t h e w a r , r i g h t ?

R: Oh, that was most ly r ight . Besides Henry McCusker was chai rman there

when the once.

I : And were there many women in any of these plants/

R: No. No. The first women to come in were as t imekeepers and whatnot,

scattered around and the first women I th ink came into the tool room
('

in the tool and dye bui ld ing. They came in and were taught to operate

one machine. They never served an apprenticeship operated one

machine.

I : Were t hey b rough t i n du r i ng t he wa r?

R : Y e s . D e fi n i t e l y .

I : A n d d i d t h e y —

R : N o t b e f o r e .

I : D id they accumu la te to h igh numbers du r ing the war i n tha t bu i l d ing?

R : N o , n o t i n t h e t o o l a n d d y e b u i l d i n g . T h e y d i d i n o t h e r b u i l d i n g s

dur ing the war they s tar ted in the pressed s tee l bu i ld ing , assembly

p l a n t , a i r c r a f t e n g i n e , a n d t h e y a r e s t i l l i n t h e r e .

I: During the war what kind of numbers were they compared to the men.

R : O h , i t ' s s t i l l l o w. T h e y w e r e s u p p o s e d t o s u p p l a n t m e n t h a t w e n t i n

the serv ice , you know. But they were enough to ra ise he l l . Because
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at the end of the war they were low senior i ty and started out in the

s t r e e t .

I : Were they p ro -un ion wh i le they were work ing dur ing the war genera l l y

or can you characterize them as opposed to men.

R: Not real ly. There was never a woman's committee or a group of women

as such. There is now. There is a women's commit tee there now. I

don't know the importance of i t . They don't seem to make enough, a

lot of noise. The women involved in the, the women involved dur ing

the str ike in the or ig inal days of the Local 600 were the women's

auxi l iary of Local 600. They manned the soup k i tchens and d id th is

and tha t .

I : Were they ac tua l l y work ing in the p lan t o r were they spouses?

R: No, they were no t , they were spouses . No, they d id work in the p lan t .

I : And do you th ink that workers genera l ly soc ia l ized when they got home

or ou ts ide the p lan t?

R : We l l , m o r e s o t h a n o t h e r s j u s t t h r o u g h a t h l e t i c a c t i v i t y a l o n e b e c a u s e

we sponsored bowling teams, baseball teams and whatnot and you know

how guys go to a bar after those games and whatnot, sure they did.

I : Ye a h . B y l o o k i n g a t t h e F o r d f a c t s i t l o o k s l i k e t h e b a s e b a l l t e a m s

w e r e a n i m p o r t a n t a c t i v i t y.

R : T h e y w e r e . I ' l l t e l l y o u t h e U n i o n s p e n t a l o t o f m o n e y o n u n i f o r m s

then there was a specific reason. They can make tee shir ts and caps

available because they wanted them worn in the shop. They wanted

exposure. They wanted UAW exposure. So wherever they could get a

bal l team together they would inssue UAW shirts with the department

name on i t and whatnot and encourage to wear them in the plant. I t

was a reason, sure.
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I : D o y o u t h i n k i t w a s e f f e c t i v e i n —

R : I t w a s ve r y, ve r y e f f e c t i ve e a r l y b u t t h e co mp a n y ma i n ta i n e d t h e i r

a th le t i c p rogram a l l du r ing tha t per iod . And we had guys p lay ing fo r

both. And of course they could have more e laborate pr izes i f they had

the money. At one t ime the company offered to sponsor a joint program

UAW and company, the union refused. They wanted separate games. And

sometimes they were sorry because that athletic equipment began to be

qu i te expens i ve .

I : Ye a h . S o d i d m o s t w o r k e r s g e n e r a l l y l i v e c l o s e t o t h e p l a n t ?

R: I can ' t say tha t fo r the Rouge p lant because o f the la rge number o f

Negroes and there are none in Dearborn yet.

I : W h e r e d i d t h e y g e n e r a l l y l i v e ?

R : On t he eas t s i de o f De t ro i t o r T^ks te r. Tha t was ano the r r eason t ha t

Blacks were pret ty hard to organize. Ford adopted the whole town of

Inks te r. He es tab l i shed the we l fa re sys tem ou t there and every th ing

e l se . P redomina te l y b l ack t own .

I : Ye a h , I w a s r e a d i n g i n t h e b i o g r a p h y o f B i l l M c K i e a b o u t t h a t . H e

j u s t v a g u e l y r e f e r s t o i t . D i d F o r d s o r t o f r e n o v a t e t h e c i t y a n d fi x

i t u p ?

R: Yeah as I say he just about conducted a wel fare system out there

before there was any nat iona l we l fa re or c i ty we l fa re or any th ing

e l s e .

I : And McKie 's book a lso re fe rs to someth ing about the B lacks in the

plant having to pay back out of their wages, money for the Inkster

fund.

R : I don ' t know whe ther i t was so much o f tha t go ing on . For i ns tance ,

guys were to ld to buy a Ford automobi le through th is or that dealer
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and you will be assured of a job as long as you are making payment on

the car. You know there were those k inds of th ings going on but i f

you had any hospi ta l izat ion you go to the Ford hospi ta l because whi le

they are a l l separa te lega l en t i t ies there was t ie and even today,

well Benson died and I don't know who is, there was always a member of

the fami l y, cha i rman o f the board o f the Ford Hosp i ta l w i th d i f fe ren t

t h i n g s .

I : S o t h e B l a c k s t h a t l i v e d i n I n k s t e r w e r e g e n e r a l l y m o r e f a v o r a b l e t o

Ford.

R : Y e s .

I : D id tha t sen t imen t con t inue on in to the 40s and 50s too?

R : I d o n ' t s e e a n y o f i t n o w, n o w h e r e . I t d i m i n i s h e d e n t i r e l y a f t e r t h e

UAW got in there . I sa id there were o ther oppor tun i t ies fo r them to

get new leadership in that st i l l wasn't open to them when Ford opened

o t h e r j o b s t o t h e m . N o s u p e r v i s o r ' s j o b , n o g o o d s a l a r y j o b . T h a t ' s

no t t rue now. They a re a l l ove r. O f course , Fo rd had to do tha t

anyway because of the change in times and the way the Blacks put on

the demonst ra t ions and every th ing e lse. You can imagine, wel l you

know between 11 and 12 percent of the total populat ion of th is country

now and they spend b i l l i ons and b i l l i ons o f t he i r, t hey a re no t a l l

unemployed, they spend b i l l ions and b i l l ions. And when you operate a

s ing le indust ry l i ke Ford 's was automobi les , and they threatened you

with a boycott now a total boycott would have meant your total

profits. Same when Ford had a newspaper in Dearborn cal led the

Dearborn Independent and at one t ime the old guy was a l i t t le bi t

s i l l y in some mat ters you know l ike he sa id h is tory is bunk. He never

learned from history he made the repeated mistake. He ran a ser ies of
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ar t ic les in there and th is publ isher was an execut ive f rom Ford Motor

Company and on the protocol of Z ion is that the name? Yeah. Ant i -

Jewish.

I : Oh yeah. Not in favor of a Jewish homeland you mean?

R : N o . A n t i - J e w i s h . A n t i - a l l J e w i s h b a n k e r s w e r e t h e t r o u b l e —

I : A n t i - s e m e t i c .

R : Yeah . We l l t he Jew ish o rgan iza t i ons warned h im; he kep t on , t hey to ld

him what was going to happen. Sooner or later, you don't see them

anymore at your age, they used to have newsreels. Most of the big

film companies had weekly newsreels. They just kept updat ing them.

Every goddam time you saw a car wrecked there was a Ford car involved

in most of the film, the kids Jewish and you saw more Ford cars

invo lved in a wreck . The imp l ica t ion was they were no t sa fe to d r ive .

And they s ta r ted a d r ive aga ins t i t . Mr. Ford dropped tha t Dearborn

Independent and gave a public apology and everything else.

I : Wa s t h i s a f t e r t h e w a r o r d u r i n g ?

R : B e f o r e .

I : O h , b e f o r e .

R : T h i s w a s b e f o r e t h e u n i o n .

I : We l l , Loca l 600 has been charac te r i zed as be ing a s t rongho ld o f the

le f t -w ing . The l e f t -w ing hav ing more power than i n o the r un ions . Can

you desc r ibe the d i f fe ren t fac t ions o f the le f t -w ing and how s t rong

you fe l t i t was in the Loca l?

R: Wel l , I never looked under my bed every n ight to see i f there was a

communist there with a bomb. Maybe you asked the wrong person because

I th ink that was the a t t i tude o f most o f them. The amount o f

communist members in Rouge plant were very, very few as far as I have
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ever been able to find out. Oh, I have been accused of being a

communist or not paying my dues and you know those dead things that

a re done . No , mos t o f t he guys , i f you were i n favo r o f c i v i l r i gh ts

and a l l t h i s and tha t we l l , you were a l e f t -w inge r.

I : Bu t who e l se bes ides the commun is t pa r t y made up tha t l e f t -w ing . Jus t

indiv iduals who are more progressive of any other party?

R : W e l l , y e a h . T h e r e w e r e a l o t o f s o c i a l i s t s . H e l l , Wa l t e r R e u t h e r w a s

a s o c i a l i s t o n c e s o w a s V i c t o r b r o t h e r s . M o s t o f t h e

o r i g ina l UAW leade rs we re . A soc ia l i s t i n t he un ion a t t ha t t ime

under Wal ter Reuther were not of the lef t -wing. He was c lean. He was

after the communists. And as far as I 'm concerned that was just a

whipping boy. Let's see what was, during the war when Russia was

get t ing the hel l beat out of them, not before that they made a pact

with Germany remember, for a short time they made a pact with Germany.

And there was no cry for a second front to go in and save France. No

big cry in th is country. And then when Germany at tacked Russia a l l

you could hear from the communists was second front and invade France

and do this and that to take the heat off of them. Make Germany put

t roops over there. That was se ized upon. Anybody that was for a

second front was automatical ly communist because the loudest screamers

f o r i t w a s R u s s i a n s . I t h i n k t h a t w a s t h e s t a r t o f t h e r e a l l y b i g

t a g .

I : How d id the communis ts ac t in the p lan ts dur ing the war?

R: They were among the best organized, but they never, there were very

few communists who ident ified themselves wi th communists . They e i ther

kept thei r mouth shut or, I was chai rman of a le f t -wing caucus in

Rouge for years, and I never asked a guy when he proposed something,
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no matter how screwy it was, because the rumor was always, we were

just a f ront for the communist party. Because somebody to ld me they

used to have caucus meetings in the hall down on Sylina Street before

they would come and invade us enmass on our caucus and present their

program to us. Well, I never asked them who they were, who they

ident ified wi th , we took the sub jec t mat ters they presented as such

and debated them and went with them or against them.

I : Would you say that those progress ive caucus meet ings were very

democrat ic?

R : O h v e r y. Ve r y. I n f a c t L o c a l 6 0 0 w a s b u i l t o n d e m o c r a c y. T h e y g o t

too democrat ic I te l l you because they had to s t r ike and put l imi ts on

the amount o f money l i t t le boards o f au thor i ty cou ld g ive ou ts ide o f

the labor movement i tself . Because anybody with a good cause, he

thought, was a good speaker, and whatnot could come in and overwhelm

everybody they vote him a couple of hundred dol lars, vote him a couple

o f thousand do l la rs and they had to pu t l im i ts on . Even execut ive

b o a r d w h i c h i s t h e e l i t e p r e s i d e n t s o f a l l t h e b u i l d i n g s p l u s l o c a l

o f fice r s has a l im i t o f I t h i nk t he l as t I hea rd was ou t s i de o f t he

labor movement, $200 donat ion. Anything above that has to go through

the finance commit tee of the General Counci l , get research and looked

over good and a recommendation made to the General Council which is

the h ighes t au thor i t y. Oh they were runn ing hog w i ld be fo re . Because

boy we had a lot of money to begin with that dollar a month when you

magnify them by the numbers.

I : Wha t k i nd o f causes we re you con t r i bu t i ng t o?

R: Now the most outstanding one I can remember and it 's a guy you have

a l ready in terv iewed I 'm sure he wouldn ' t ment ion, i t was not
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outstanding, one of the th ings that brought about th is c lamping down

on the rule you had to go through a finance committee and everything

else when Tito in Yoguloslavia was appealing for goods and arras and

whatnot . I t was Shel ton Tappes that made a mot ion to donate a fu l ly

supplied ambulance to Tito. Oh my God you would have thought the

house was coming down. We voted for it. Joe McCusker was president

o f t he l oca l a t t ha t t ime and a rea l r i gh t -w inge r, re fused to s ign the

check. And I wasn' t personal ly involved but somebody had to go to the

internat ional union and te l l Joe McCusker to s ign that check because

i t was proper ly author ized by the h ighest body, the Genera l Counci l .

And they ordered him to s ign that check or they would author ize i t

f rom h igher up. Such th ings as that had come under a l i t t le bet ter

c o n t r o l .

I: How much money was donated to Tito?

R : O h , t h e fi g u r e h e o r i g i n a l l y m e n t i o n e d w a s f a n t a s t i c . I t w a s c u t d o w n

to, wel l at that t ime i t was, but what would an ambulance cost in

those days, cars were a lot cheaper than they are now, $82,000? I

d o n ' t k n o w, I ' m t h i n k i n g o f fi g u r e s .

I : O h . S o a f t e r t h e r u l e s w e r e c h a n g e d d i d i t p r e v e n t t h e s e t y p e s o f

donations to more progressive causes?

R: Yes . We l l , i t he ld down the amount and a lo t o f o the r th ings because

as I said anybody with something to promote or a cause that was dear

to h im, cou ld be, i t ' s not assoc ia ted wi th a labor movement a t a l l .

He'd just go in there and make a wild-eyed speech and get up and

propose this and that and half the guys didn't know what the cause was

or th i s and tha t bu t he ' s a n i ce fe l l ow so go a long . And tha t ' s a

hel l o f a way to run a finance.
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I : You were ta lk ing about the communists before and that they were good

organ izers . What about o ther ways that they conducted the i r un ion

management relations? Do you think that they were more tough on

g r ievances o r more l i ke l y t o s t r i ke?

R : N o , t h a t ' s a l o t o f m a l a r k e y. A s a m a t t e r o f f a c t w e h a d a r e a l l e f t -

wing president, Paul Boat in, in the motor bui ld ing once and Ed Lock

was p res iden t o f t he t i r e p lan t . Wa l te r Reu the r go t us i nvo l ved in a

five-year contract to reopen the contract and get us a wage af ter the

wage freeze was over fol lowing World War I I , he signed a five-year

contract . I t was just a pact of peace wi th the Ford Motor Company for

a very nominal sum of 5- or 10* an hour and when the war was over we

were sadd led w i th tha t th ing . We wanted to b reak i t . We d idn ' t know

how, no s t r i ke p ledge and a l l t h i s and tha t . Wa l te r Reu the r go t

elected president in '46 and that was the year I th ink that GM

e s t a b l i s h e d t h e c o s t o f l i v i n g f o r m u l a . T h e y e s t a b l i s h e d i t t h e r e .

We used some damn excuse that the companies weren't living up to the

formula or they were computing the cost of l iv ing based on the

consumer ' s i ndex w rong , I f o rge t t he spec i fics . We i ns i s ted t hey

reopen the con t rac t an they re fused . Now the in te rna t iona l un ion

c o u l d n ' t a d v o c a t e s t r i k e s , t h e y s i g n e d t h e n o - s t r i k e . B u t t h e y

encouraged them you know. But Wal ter Reuther at that t ime said i t 's a

l i v ing document and su re we 've go t to s ign agreements . I t ' s a l i v ing

document and condit ions change and this and that, we were operating

under war t imes and oh he could speak. And we started to pull a

ser ies of shutdowns in the Rouge plant bui ld ing by bui ld ing and these

two wel l-known communists chairmen of two bui ldings and theirs never

went down.
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I: Do you think that was because it was war time?

R: I t was af ter the war.

I : O h , a f t e r .

R: After the war. I don't know, it seems to me a guy who was a communist

instead of throwing his power around or acting like your Red

communists acted, they were afraid of sticking their neck out too far.

And sometimes they just weren't as militant as other people were. Of

course I can say that about the communist parties all over this

country. I don't remember them ever leading any revolution or any

power-play movement or bomb throwing all this and that, that was

attributed to them I don't know because, if you can name any event

where they led a revolution or what not, tell me I don't know of any.

I: No, not in this country. So do you think that they generally stayed

away or expounded on their socialist commitment in the shops■• Did

they talk that way to the workers or did they just think about it

while they were there?

R: Individual workers. There was never any meeting I was ever at where

communist or socialist speakers got up and advocated the elimination

of the capitalist system and nationalized industry and this and that.

Whether they were afraid of getting ruled out of order at a union

meeting because really that's not to be done in the union, it's to be

done in Congress or wherever. But I never heard anything of that.

Oh, some got up and made comparisons, this couldn't happen there, it

couldn't happen here.

I: How about the way they advocated that the union members vote for

example in 1948 when Henry Wallace ran for president, was there any

a c t i v i t y o n t h e p a r t o f t h e ?
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R: Wel l , o f course there was no communis t par ty. Of course we d idn ' t do

t o o w e l l .

I : How much o f the le f t -w ing advocated a vo te fo r Wal lace, d id most o f

them?

R: Oh, my bu i ld ing went a l l ou t . O f course , we were in v io la t ion o f UAW

policy, but at that t ime we had a president named Virgi l Lacey who was

qui te a gutsy ind iv idual . And I can remember someth ing he s tar ted.

Tommy Thompson was president of the local union for four years through

1949 and he was on the national negotiating committee that went in and

negotiated a proposed pension plan for Ford workers and Dick Leonard

was nat iona l Ford d i rec tor. Wel l they made th is mis take and Wal ter

Reuther said you will never get that under me again because he got a

pension plan. They went in and came back with two proposals. One you

could get a wage increase, where one you could accept a pension. They

st i l l ca l l i t a company pa id pens ion you know, a noncont r ibu tory p lan.

What you would otherwise have in wages goes into your contr ibution

pens ion p lan . So i t i s jus t a myth tha t i t i s a company pa id p lan .

Anything you get when you work for a company is company paid if you

wan t t o l ook a t i t t ha t way. Bu t t he worke rs tu rned i t down . And

Thompson run for reelection said had put an assessment on workers of

50* a month to bui ld what he cal led a fight ing pension fund to

pub l i c i ze the need fo r a pens ion and a l l th i s and tha t , tha t wen t on

for, i t came out to $5.50 every member had contr ibuted to that at 50*

a month. And he spent more money returning that then it would have

cos t h im to pu t i t t o be t te r use . Bu t he was a po l i t i ca l an ima l he

promised the workers he would return thei r money i f they d idn ' t get a

pension. Wel l , you can imagine to return $5.50 and what the mai l ing
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charge was, and searching the fi les for those deceased and to their

. Bu t anyway Vi rg i l Lacey s ta r ted a figh t ing fund fo r Henry

Wal lace . Everybody tha t ge ts the i r $5 .50 check make the cont r ibu t ion

to Henry Wallace campaign fund.

I : Th i s was Thompson 's i dea?

R : N o , V i r g i l L a c e y ' s .

I : O h , V i r g i l L a c e y ' s .

R: Pres ident o f the too l and d^e un i t . No Thompson he re tu rned the

money. He didn' t want anybody to th ink he stole the money or got i t

u n d e r f a l s e p r e t e n s e s . H e r e t u r n e d i t . A s I s a i d i t c o s t t h e l o c a l a

he l l o f a l o t o f money fo r h im to re tu rn i t . I remember a t the

fundra is ing dr ive for Henry Wal lace down in Detro i t Olympia s tad ium i t

was packed and somebody announced, they introduced Virgil Lacey,

co l lect ing money f rom the Ford workers the fight ing pension fund is

now going into the Henry Wal lace fight ing fund for Democrat ic

Pres iden t o r P rogress ive pa r t y p res iden t , p res iden t o f the Un i ted

Sta tes , they d idn ' t ment ion Progress ive . And he go t qu i te a few

d o l l a r s •

I : Because-o f—the heavy p rogress ive vo te?

R : N o t r e a l l y. I d o n ' t k n o w i f t h e t o t a l w o u l d h a v e d o n e i t . D e w e y w a s

pretty popular at that t ime. He was born in Michigan and they made

him the hometown boy and everything. Well , he won his reputation as a

prosecuting attorney in New York and he never lost that homeboy

fee l i ng . Th i s s ta te was a lways f o r t he o rgan i za t i on , o f un ions , was

always Republican anyway.

I : 'Do you th ink tha t t he worke rs vo ted fo r, aga ins t Truman too? Vo ted

Republ ican?
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R : W e l l , n o t i n t h e n u m b e r s t h e y d o n o w . O h , t h e y b l a s t e d ,

I'm ashamed of the votes Reagan got.

I : Why don ' t we ta l k a l i t t l e b i t abou t Wor ld War I I and abou t t he

cond i t i ons i ns ide the p lan ts . Was the re a l o t o f p lan t tu rnover and a

lot of new people coming in and out of the plant al l the t ime?

R: Su re . As I t o l d you t ha t was t he i n t r oduc t i on o f women i n t he p l an t

and guys go ing to the serv ice . A lo t o f t roub le s ta r ted when they

came back.

I : D i d a l l t h a t t u r n o v e r m e a n a n y t h i n g f o r t h e f e e l i n g s o f s o l i d a r i t y i n

the un i t s?

R : N o . T h o s e w o m e n j o i n e d r i g h t i n t h e r e . A s I s a i d a l l d u r i n g t h e w a r

we had a no-strike pledge on and frozen wages and whatnot. There

wasn' t a hel l of a lot of th ings we could do. We made a lot of noise

and whatnot about working condit ions but there was nothing we could to

to put muscle on and force them. That was a bad period for labor.

I : How abou t the labor supp ly. Was the re a shor tage o f workers o r

oversupp ly?

R: I never see any. Well , of course, the women came out, women coming

into the plants because sure in hel l what the service men were paid

then couldn't keep the woman at home with any kids. They had to go

out and work. Don' t you remember Rosie the r iveter?

I : O h , y e a h .

R: They were out making money, they weren't just out making pin money

like women now. That helped hold the wages down you know. You know

and women keep screaming about making, what, 58 or 65 percent of a

man's wages. So many of them wil l take part-t ime jobs as pin money

and they're not too concerned about union wages or anything else,
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because their husbands are making money. Most of them are, of course

that hurts the ones that really have to work and keep a home up

because their wages are dragged on to. And that 's never been true in

the UAW. There was never a period when women didn't make the same

wages.

I : They had equa l pay fo r equa l work?

R : Ye a h . T h a t w a s t r u e t h e n a n d i t ' s s t i l l t r u e .

I: And would you say that there was a problem with speed-ups or were

there enough workers to perform the work that they didn' t need the

speed-up during the war.

R: Wel l , o f course i t wasn ' t au to product ion we were in . We were mak ing

tanks, we were making amphib ious boats , a i rcra f t eng ines. The on ly

thing simi lar to auto product ion was the jeeps and whatnot, you know

they're pretty much the same. But was there emough manpower? Yeah,

or women power because everything was cost plus. He didn't mind over

h i r i n g . I ' l l t e l l y o u o n e t h i n g h e h i d a l o t o f s k i l l e d w o r k e r s i n

that tool and drire bui lding that could have been put to better use

somewhere else where there was a shortage. Just because of the cost

plus. I saw grown men actually cry because some boss would give them

a b ig brass nut to go put in a v ice say ing i t was a mi l l ing fi le and

pol ish the th ing up. They got sons overseas and every th ing, out here

is a tool jmaker working on a bomber fixture doing this and that

put ter ing around there so that Ford could put h is wages plus h is

p r o fi t o n . T h e y h i d a l o t o f s k i l l e d l a b o r. O h , t h e y w o u l d n e v e r

a d m i t i t .

I : Wha t do you th i nk abou t t he i ncen t i ve i ssue du r i ng the wa r, t he

incen t i ve pay i ssue .
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R: Well, some guys wanted it because it was the only way to beat the wage

f reeze. The guys tha t d idn ' t want i t o r ran on a campaign l i ke Wal ter

Reuther he was going to el iminate incentive pay systems throughout the

indust ry and whatnot , ye t i t was under h is reg ime that incent ive

system was put into the steel d iv is ion in the Ford Motor Company. Of

c o u r s e h e d i d n ' t c a l l i t i n c e n t i v e p a y, h e c a l l e d i t t o n a g e . T h e y

produced so much steel over and above a certain tonage, they got a

bonus . I f you can te l l me the d i f fe rence be tween tha t and incen t i ve

pay tonage then you got the answer. But the workers wanted i t , and

t h e y s t i l l w a n t i t . N o w t h e y ' r e f a c e d w i t h l o s i n g i t a n d t h e y d o n ' t

want to g ive i t up .

I : Were you i n favo r o r opposed to i t du r i ng the war.

R : I w a s o p p o s e d t o i t . W e l l , I ' l l t e l l y o u a l o t o f p r o g r e s s i v e s t u f f

that would speed up the war work and al l th is and that . I could never

s e e i t a s a p r a c t i c a l m a t t e r.

I : What d id you th ink about the argument that that was the only way to

increase the wages?

R: We l l , t ha t goes back as f a r as t he i ncen t i ve sys tem i s o l d . A no rm

would be set and you break that norm and you would get a part of the

increase in wages. Of course, the boss got the b igger share o f i t

because the more you make off the same machinery, the cheaper the

i n d i v i d u a l co s t i s . Th e p e r ca p i t a co s t . Bu t t h e n e x t t h i n g yo u kn e w

they combined and made a new time study and the norm went up. So it

was a rat race. You could never win.

I : S o t h a t ' s t h e r e a s o n w h y y o u t h o u g h t t h a t —

R : O h , I w a s a g a i n s t i t a l l t h e t i m e .
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I : I n 1 9 5 2 w h e n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l i m p o s e d t h e a d m i n i s t r a t o r s h i p o n l o c a l

6 0 0 a n d i t r e m o v e d t h o s e fi v e p e o p l e , i s i t , f r o m o f fi c e , . . .

R : Y e a h .

I : W h a t ' s y o u r o p i n i o n o f t h e c o u r s e o f e v e n t s ?

R : I was ce r ta i n l y opposed to i t . I was cha i rman o f t he t oo l and dye

u n i t a t t h a t t i m e , p r e s i d e n t o r w h a t e v e r y o u c a l l i t a n d i t i s n ' t o n l y

those five they took ou t , they s ta r ted tak ing ind iv idua l commi t temen,

job stewards out too who they suspected of being a communist or fellow

t r a v e l e r s .

I : We l l , how many i n a l l do you th i nk?

R : I d o n ' t k n o w r e a l l y, m a y b e 5 0 i n t h e w h o l e p l a n t . I n m y u n i t t h e y

took out two. They took out Mack Cinzor i as I 've ment ioned before and

Tbm Jel ly.

I : What happened to those guys?

R : T h e y a l l c a m e b a c k s t r o n g e r t h a n e v e r. I t ' s a n o t h e r s t o r y. W h e n t h e

in te rna t i ona l un ion t ook ove r t he l oca l t hey, we l l anyway you ca l l i t ,

t h e y w e r e a d i c t a t o r s h i p . T h e y p u t a n a d m i n i s t r a t o r i n t h e r e . J a c k

Conway who was approved as administrative assistant took over the

o f fi c e o f t h e p r e s i d e n c y. A n a u d i t o r f r o m t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l u n i o n

t o o k o v e r t h e fi n a n c i a l s e c r e t a r y ' s o f fi c e f o r t h e B l a c k s , t h e i r

record ing secretary so a B lack guy took over the record ing secretary 's

o f fi c e . ? . S o t h e y p u t a

g u y i n t h e v i c e p r e s i d e n t ' s o f fi c e t o o . T h e y d i d n ' t r e m o v e t h e s e f o u r

o f fice rs f r om the pay ro l l . They j us t r oamed a round t he bu i l d i ng

goss ip ing and do ing th is and tha t wh i le on the payro l l . Maybe i f they

had been removed from the payroll they would have raised more hell and

f o u g h t a l i t t l e h a r d e r b u t t h e y d i d n ' t .
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I : S o t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l w a s p a y i n g f o r t h e s e a d m i n i s t r a t o r s . . .

R : Yes . We l l t hey had con t ro l o f ou r l oca l dues , t hey we re runn ing t he

l o c a l o u t o f o u r d u e s m o n e y. T h e d u e s c o l l e c t i o n s t i l l w e n t u p . I t

w a s d u r i n g t h a t t i m e I w r o te , i n ' 5 2 , t h e l a t t e r p a r t o f ' 5 2 , I w r o te

a l e a fl e t t h a t g o t w i d e c i r c u l a t i o n i n t h e p l a n t a n d i n o t h e r p l a n t s

t o o , t h e t i t l e " I d i s a g r e e . " B e c a u s e t h e y w e r e r u n n i n g o u r l o c a l

newspaper Ford Facts and one of the headlines they had in there was

Democracy Prevai ls in Local 600, workers j^ t i l l have a r ight to

d i s a g r e e a n d w h a t n o t . I d e c i d e d w e l l I w i l l a v a i l m y s e l f t o t h a t

r i g h t t o d i s a g r e e . I w r o t e a f o u r - p a g e t a b l o i d a n d I h e a d e d i t , " I

d i sagree . " To ld them I was tak ing th i s oppor tun i t y they sa id was

prov ided fo r a l l the Ford workers to d isagree .

I : D id you no t i ce the l eve l o f democracy change du r ing tha t

admin is t ra to rsh ip? D id they cu t down on the—

R : O h d i d t h e y. T h e y p u t a d m i n i s t r a t o r — t h e r e i s n o l o c a l , n o u n i t

o f fice r cou ld ca l l a mee t i ng w i t hou t t he p resence o f an i n te rna t i ona l

rep . They ass igned an in te rna t iona l rep to every un i t and on ly he

could ca l l meet ings. Our e lected chai rman ca l led a meet ing and he 'd

be there and I let the guy chair and then he would tel l them what

subject matters could be brought on the floor and what party could

vote and whatnot . But I cha l lenged them to have an e lec t ion . They

d id and I t e l l you tha t was the so r r i es t t h ing Wa l te r Reu the r d id , i f

he eve r took a l i ck ing , boy, i t was in tha t one . We e lec ted the loca l

o f fi c e r s b y t w o - t h i r d s . I w o n b y t w o - t h i r d s i n m y u n i t w h e r e a s I ' v e

been in c lose e lec t ions before . But these five they removed never go t

b a c k i n f o r a b o u t fi v e y e a r s , i n t e r n a t i o n a l h e l d t o t h a t o n e .

I : We l l , w h a t a b o u t t h e o t h e r 5 0 ? We r e t h e y o u t t h a t l o n g ?
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R : S o o n a d m i n i s t o r s h i p w a s l i f t e d , t h e y w e r e p u t b a c k i n o f fi c e . I n t h e

case of my two they didn't want to go back in with that st igma over

their heads. They were going to be accepted by the membership of not.

They demanded elections and I gave it to them and they both

overwhelmed.

I : Now why d id the in te rna t iona l a l low those peop le to come back? Wasn ' t

the purpose o f the admin is t ra to rs—

R: They only charged five people wi th adherence to the communist par ty

programs. The others were a l l taken out as sympath izers or lega l

words.

I : So how d id the five tha t were ous ted ge t back i n five yea rs?

R: They appea led to the in ternat iona l un ion , the way to ge t back was to

a p p e a l t o t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l c o n v e n t i o n a n d a f t e r t h a t t i m e fi n a l l y

somebody decided in the higher up, Reuther was president, five years

was enough. Don't ask me how he established the time.

I : And d id t ha t mean they we re ou t o f t he p l an t a l t oge the r o r j us t

i n a c t i v e l e a d e r s h i p ?

R: No, no, no, under the UAW a guy could remove from office at the Ford

Motor Company or any other company could not kick them out of the

plant for condescending. Al though the UAW went to court and fought

those k ind . They were a l lowed to s tay in the job .

I : They pre t ty much remained ac t ive as they were and jus t w i th the

e x c e p t i o n t h a t t h e y d i d n ' t h a v e t h e o f fi c i a l l e a d e r s h i p ?

R: Some did and some didn' t . Some were so disgusted they just dropped

out. Paul Boat in come back and became president. He defeated Carl

S te l l a t o ' s b ro the r f o r p res i den t i n t he eng ine p l an t . John Ga l l o came

back and was elected president of the engine plant. Ed Lock to my
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knowledge never ran for e lect ion again. A colored by the name of

Davis was reelected to the bargaining committee in the foundry and

Dave Moore, another colored guy, was elected vice president in the

axle bui ld ing, thats where he was before. And eventual ly became an

i n t e r n a t i o n a l r e p r e s e n t a t i v e .

I : M o o r e d i d ?

R : Y e a h .

I : O h , I d i d n ' t k n o w t h a t .

R: Oh, yeah. Ken Bannon appo in ted h im on the s ta f f o f the nat iona l Ford

department .

I : How d id the House Unamer ican Ac t iv i t ies Commi t tees hear ing in Det ro i t

o r l oca l 600 a f f ec t t he go ings -on i n t he l oca l .

R : We l l , i t a f f ec ted some o f t he i nd i v i dua l s . I neve r wan ted t o know who

was a Communist and who wasn't. When a guy was charged he had a right

to defense. I remember, oh it was quite a number of tool and dye men

were issued subpoenas to appear before that commit tee. Not a l l o f

them got to tes t i fy bu t they were ca l led down there . They los t work

and eve ry th ing e l se . And I pu t on a d r i ve to pay the i r de fense b i l l s .

I guess i t was Ern ie Goodman's office $100 a man. I ra ised $1200. I

never had a harder t ime in my l i fe rais ing $1200.

I : How d id you go abou t do ing i t .

R: Took my best committeemen and went man to man on their constituents.

Not based on whether the guy was a Communist or whether he wasn't, was

he a good committeeman and whatnot he's in trouble now... We went man

for man for $1. I remember one guy I went to, Tom Jelly was the

committeeman and he said the best committeeman ever was in this plant,

he was crying, he handed over the $1 and he said if I thought for one
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minute that guy was a communist I would spit in his face I wouldn' t

hand you a dime. He was the best committeeman he ever saw but he was

jus t so an t i -communis t . I never saw emot ions l i ke they d id then .

I : So you had 1200 con t r i bu to r s t hen , t o t ha t f und?

R : We l l , m a y b e s o m e p e o p l e I d i d n ' t r a i s e i t a l l p e r s o n a l l y. T h e

commit teemen. . .

I : So do you th ink tha t t hese hea r ings had an e f fec t on the i nfluence o f

t h e l e f t i n t h e l o c a l ?

R : O h , s u r e i t d i d , i t w a s i n t e n d e d t o . S o m e s t i l l s a y t h a t R e u t h e r a n d

the in te rna t iona l un ion inv i ted them to do a job tha t they cou ldn ' t do

po l i t i ca l l y w i t h i n t he p l an t t o t hem, you know. Ge t t he i r names

be fo re the gene ra l pub l i c .

I : So wha t happened : wha t was t he e f f ec t o f t hese t es t imon ies? I f a guy

went up and took the 5th amendment.••

R : Noth ing . There was never anybody conv ic ted o r any th ing as a resu l t o f

those hearings. And most of the guys just went down and used the 5th

amendment•

I : S o h o w w a s i t e f f e c t i v e i n r e d u c i n g t h e e f f e c t o f t h e l e f t , o r t h e

f o r c e o f t h e l e f t i n t h e l o c a l ?

R: That was dur ing the McCarthy days and that just the t imes. My God

tha t McCar thy rea l l y ra i sed he l l i n t h i s coun t r y. Eve rybody was

af ra id to say anyth ing. When he cou ld ind ic t guys l i ke George

Marshall as being an agent of the communist party and the Secretary of

State holy mackrel. He always used to go around waving a big sheet of

paper. Here I have a l ist of 12,000 dues paying members of the

communist party and engaged in the State Department and other higher

jobs—he never l e t t ha t l i s t go down so you cou ld l ook a t i t . He jus t
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waved it you know. He started naming the names and My God some of the

ones he named.

I: So do you think the Ford workers were intimidated?

R: Yes, they were, sure they were.

I: And you think that had an affect on later elections of these people

who were—

R: Most of them came back, most of them did. Because when McCarthy was

exposed and the heat died down and everything, people resorted to what

they were doing before.

I: Now does the international union have a similar trial before the House

UnAmerican Activities Committee came to town? I heard it referred to

a couple of times that there was.

R: The International never had a trial. The trials were heard in the

local unions.

I: Does the local union have a trial?

R : Y e s .

I : Was that lead by Stel lato?

R: Yes. He charged 5 of them, and of course he had no authority to

remove them from office, and the trial committee was picked from the

General Council and of course he controlled the General Council so the

outcome was quite evident, and but before they could get to report

their findings, we had a new election and the progressives took over

the General Council. And when that trial committee came to report

their findings which was guilty, we said we don't even want to hear

their findings because half or more of them were defeated for

reelection as members of the Council no longer elegible to serve on

any council committee.
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I : S o y o u t o o k t h e v o t e o v e r ?

R: I made a mot ion to dismiss the commit tee not wi th a vote of thanks

ei ther, just d ismiss the commit tee, because they were no longer a

commi t tee o f our body. So they appea led tha t to the in te rna t iona l

union. Walter Reuther ru led that was a standing commit tee and duly

elected commit tee at the t ime and they should report to the present

c o u n c i l . S o I d o n ' t k n o w. O h , t h a t t o o k a l o n g , l o n g t i m e . S o t h e n

when it came back again a motion to dismiss was overruled. And they

g a v e t h e r e p o r t o f g u i l t y. A t t h a t t i m e w e w e r e s t i l l i n c h a r g e o f

the counc i l and we over ru led the commi t tee . But i t was a f te r tha t the

i n t e rna t i ona l come i n and S te l l e t o , by v i r t ue o f h i s hav i ng fi l ed t he

charges, we l l they were the five outs tand ing, so those were the five

removed f rom the office by the end. His job was done for h im real ly.

I 'm sure Stel lato was sorry in more ways than one actual ly.

I : C a n y o u g i v e a l i t t l e b i t o f y o u r i m p r e s s i o n s a b o u t C a r l S t e l l a t o ?

R : Ye a h . H e w a s a n e g o t i s t t o s a y t h e l e a s t . A h a r d w o r k e r. A n d I

didn't know his background. Many guys say that he was closer to Ford

than anybody knew. He was a worker in the motor bu i ld ing . I d idn ' t

e v e r fi n d i t t o b e t r u e . Yo u k n o w s t o r i e s l i k e t h a t a r e t o l d a b o u t a

lot of people. Because Ford had Harry Bennett who was in charge of

the goon squad fo r Ford had sa id i f I can ' t cont ro l the un ion , can ' t

k e e p i t o u t I ' l l c o n t r o l i t f r o m w i t h i n , y o u k n o w. S o o n e o f t h e

favor i te th ings in any e lec t ion campa ign then became: He 's e i ther a

communist stooge or he's a company stooge. He's working for the

company or he's working for the party. And there were very many

v a r i a t i o n s i n t w i s t s t o p u t o n i t o f c o u r s e . B u t S t e l l a t o w a s a n

in ternat iona l rep when he dec ided on, in ternat iona l un ion wanted to
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eliminate Tommy Thompson who was, I suppose, as near an independent as

you could get.

I : W e l l , c a n h e b e c h a r a c t e r i z e d a s r i g h t o r l e f t ?

R : W h o ?

I : T h o m p s o n .

R : H e j u s t fl o a t e d i n t h e b r e e z e . D e p e n d i n g o n t h e i s s u e . Wa l t e r

Reuther d idn ' t con t ro l h im to the ex ten t tha t he wanted . Of course

Stel lato was internat ional rep at that t ime and you had to come back

and work in the plant for three months before you could run for a

loca l un ion o ffice . So he had to res ign as an in te rna t iona l rep , come

back and appl ied for re instatement as a worker. He was re instated and

immediately took a three months' leave of absence.

I : Whe re d i d he ge t h i s popu la r i t y i n Loca l 600?

R : M a i n l y o n t h e p e n s i o n p l a n . A n d I t h i n k t h e fi r s t o n e w a s o r i g i n a l l y

when there were s t r ikes one in e ight o f workers o f tha t s t ruck p lant

go t vo lun ta ry con t r ibu t ions f rom o ther loca l un ions o r wha tever the

internat ional was able to g ive and i t was doled out . And when the

internat ional set up a str ike fund i t was doled out based on need not

the r ight. So he waged a big campaign that there should be a raise in

dues bu t t he l a rge r po r t i on o f i t shou ld go i n t o an i n t e rna t i ona l

s t r ike fund, and that that money be a l located to the workers on s t r ike

not based on need but the r ight because they contr ibuted.

I : What did i t mean to be based on need.

R: Well , you would have to go down there and plead poverty or do

something else. You would have to go before a committee of your peers

a n d t h e y d e c i d e w h e t h e r y o u n e e d e d i t o r n o t . I t g o t p i t i f u l . We l l ,

either a guy was too soft everybody would get i t or he was too tough
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and certain people didn' t get i t , you know. The campaign was on the

r ight ins tead o f the need. And that preva i led . And as you know now,

t h a t ' s t h e b i g g e s t f u n d i n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l , . . . t h e s t r i k e f u n d .

A n d t h e y t h e y l e f t i t .

I : When d id he do th is? Th is was in the la te 40s , o r in the 50s?

R : 5 0 s . H e d i d n ' t , h e g o t e l e c t e d l o c a l u n i o n p r e s i d e n t i n 1 9 5 0 .

I: And now how did the workers know him—?

R : 1 9 5 2 I t h i n k h e p u t t h a t r e s o l u t i o n t h r o u g h t o t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l

conven t ion .

I : W h e r e d i d h e g e t h i s p o p u l a r i t y j u s t t o b e c o m e e l e c t e d f o r t h e fi r s t

t ime fo r the p res idency o f t he l oca l .

R : We l l , t he le f t and the r i gh t knew tha t Thompson was ne i the r o f the i r

men. And we supported Percy Llewellyn at that t ime. He had been a

fo rmer p res iden t and reg iona l d i rec to r and i n te rna t i ona l sen t t h i s guy

down. He came f rom nowhere, real ly but the r ight wing prevai led in

the plant. Oh, the consensus was to get r id of Thompson both sides.

Bu t the r i gh t w ing p reva i l ed and e lec ted S te l l a to .

I : How did the workers know about him, he was running on the r ight wing

s l a t e ?

R: You hear te lev is ion and radio and newspapers and whatnot . These guys

running for office now learn a lo t about i t f rom Local 600 because

campaigns real ly cost you money, tablo ids and th is and that , oh boy.

P i c t u r e s , p o s i t i o n p a p e r s .

I : So who had the money to put out?

R : We l l , he was backed by t he i n te rna t i ona l un ion . He had p ro fess iona l

writers behind him. Jack Conway and Victor Reuther and who have you.
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I : So there were no rest r ic t ions in the Local on the amount you can spend

on an e lect ion?

R : N o . N e v e r w a s . A l l y o u c a n r a i s e .

I : Wha t ' s you r imp ress i on o f S te l l a t o as a un i on l eade r?

R: Oh , he was ve ry e f fec t i ve , he cou ld speak . He d idn ' t have a l o t o f

schooling and maybe his grammar wasn't perfect but he was very

e f fec t i ve as a speaker. And a l l re t i rees owed, thought they owed

al legiance to him. He always communicated with them through the mai l

or whatnot and when he got up and he was one of the first ones to

advoca te a l oca l r e t i r ee ' s chap te r w i t h t he r i gh t t o vo te f o r

o fficers . Was never a un ion in the coun t ry tha t had tha t , and very

few yet . And the in ternat ional agreed and set up such a th ing, and

every local union was issued a charter for the ret ired members and

means set up fo r them to vo te . And they cou ldn ' t vo te fo r an in -p lant

rep resen ta t i ve l i ke commi t teemen o r wha tno t . Bu t f o r o f fice rs who

cou ld e f f ec t t he i r f u tu re as re t i r ees i n nego t i a t i ons w i th t he company

and whatnot they could vote for them. So cer ta in ly in the numbers of

r e t i r e e s w e h a d i t b e c a m e v e r y i m p o r t a n t t o . C a r l

Storetto was elected two or three t imes based on the major i ty he got

f r o m t h e r e t i r e e s . H e d i d n ' t g e t t h e i n p l a n t v o t e . S o t h a t d r e w t h e m

closer and c loser. And when you get up at gate four wi th those

thousands o f peop le walk ing out o f the p lant l i s ten ing to a

loudspeaker and so lemnly swear that I sha l l s ign no contract that

doesn ' t con ta i n an i nc rease f o r t hose a l r eady re t i r ed . He had t he i r

a l l e g i a n c e . P u t t w o f u l l - t i m e p a i d s t a f f m e m b e r s i n t h e l o c a l u n i o n

and the re t i r ees depa r tmen t . Se rved s tu f f f o r commun i t y a f f a i r s t hey

run into personal problems they could come down there. You know there
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is not a lot of people. I have never been on welfare and whatnot and

despite all my experience when people come to you what can I do, I'm

i n n e e d o f t h i s o r t h a t . T h e y f o r g e t t h a t t h e y c o n t r i b u t e

foundat ions , they cer ta in o rgan iza t ions in there they can appea l to

you know i f they are in need of th is or that . And they pay taxes to

d i f f e r e n t t h i n g s . S o t h e r e i s a l r e a d y e s t a b l i s h e d p r o c e d u r e s ; o r

commissions or welfare divisions or some damn thing they can go to for

re l ie f bu t they don ' t know i t . And those guys down to the loca l un ion

did know i t and they bu i ld up the i r reputat ion for serv ice and he d id

a wonde r fu l j ob w i th re t i r ees .

I : W h a t w a s h i s r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h t h e l e f t w i n g i n t h e l o c a l ?

R : H e w a s o r i g i n a l l y a l e f t w i n g e r .

I : You mean when he was in the motor bui lding?

R: Yeah he leaned that way and he was kind of l ike this but he was

appoin ted by Percy L lewel lyn , Percy was e lec ted s ta ff reg iona l

d i rec to r in 1943. Car l S te l la to had been on the barga in ing commi t tee

and the Motor bui ld ing was one of h is first appointees on Percy 's

s ta f f . And tha t was a l l r igh t hen R.J . Thomas was pres ident . When

Wal ter Reuther got e lec ted in 1946, he s tar ted c lean ing house. Most

o f these reg iona l d i rec to rs thought they had the r igh t to appo in tment .

They never read the book real c lose. Wal ter Reuther had charge of a l l

t he appo in tmen ts , and he cou ld o rde r : c l ea r t ha t ou t , c l ea r t ha t ou t .

Bu t he d idn ' t have the fi rs t year he go t e lec ted , he d idn ' t have

c o n t r o l o f t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l e x e c u t i v e b o a r d . T h e l e f t w i n g s t i l l h a d

almost two-th i rds of the votes on the board. So he could only go so

farAnd he real ly c leaned house in 1947. He c leaned out these regional

directors and everything else and swung i t around, he took over two-
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th i r ds con t ro l o f t he i n t e rna t i ona l execu t i ve boa rd and he rea l l y

s t a r t e d c l e a n i n g s t a f f . B u t P e r c y ' s s u c c e s s o r a s r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r

was a Reuther man named Joe McCusker, who kept Carl Stellato on. So

that raised a lot of eyebrows as to why in housecleaning he survived.

N e v e r d i d g e t t h e f u l l s t o r y, o r h e a r t h e j u s t i fi c a t i o n , ( b r e a k ) H e

ran for Congressman once, you know. He had good support from the

l o c a l u n i o n .

I : How c lose d id he come?

R : W e l l , 1 6 t h d i s t r i c t i n D e t r o i t — i t w a s h e a v i l y P o l i s h p o p u l a t e d a n d

the guy that ran the guy that was a congressman was John Lesinski, Jr.

and his father had been congressman prior to him—it was a real

dynas ty. He d idn ' t w in bu t t ha t was the heav ies t p r imary e lec t i on i n

t h e h i s t o r y o f t h e 1 6 t h d i s t r i c t .

I : D i d h e r u n o n t h e D e m o c r a t i c t i c k e t ?

R : Ye a h . I n a D e m o c r a t i c p r i m a r y a g a i n s t L e s i n s k i . A n d t h e r e w a s a r e a l

goo fba l l t ha t Les insk i . Go t by on h i s f a t he r ' s name , cou ldn ' t speak ,

I went down to Washington one time to plug a bill to Local of the UAW

and our Local union part icular ly was interested in, and he heard who

we were and stuff told his secretary to let us in and we asked him how

he was doing on such and such a bill, well we knew the UAW in

Washington office had given a digest to al l the congressmen you know.

O h , h e s a i d , t h i s i s r i g h t o n t h e fl o o r n o w. W h a t b i l l i s t h a t n o w

and wha t ' s t he un ion pos i t i on on t ha t? I l ooked , I can read a l i t t l e

b i t ups ide down, he had the damn th ing r ight in f ront o f h im. Cla imed

h e n e v e r g o t i t a n d . A n d i t w a s b e i n g d e b a t e d o n t h e fl o o r .

He wasn' t on the floor when we went into the office.
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I : D i d L o ca l 6 0 0 t a ke i t s su g g e s t i o n s f r o m t h e i n t e rn a t i o n a l o n w h a t

bi l ls should be supported or opposed or d id i t have i ts own ideas

abou t t hose t ypes o f b i l l s?

R: Loca l un ions have autonomy to a cer ta in ex tent . They can endorse

c a n d i d a t e s o r t h e y c a n e n d o r s e b i l l s t h e r e i s v e r y l i t t l e d i f f e r e n c e ,

rea l l y when you come down to i t . I f the In te rna t iona l doesn ' t endorse

c a n d i d a t e s o r, p a r t i c u l a r l y w h e t h e r i t ' s a h e a v y d e m o c r a t i c d i s t r i c t

and they don ' t want to get involved in pr imar ies between f r iends or

whatno t then loca l un ions can endorse . Bu t once the in te rna t iona l

makes the endorsement through their Pol i t ical Act ion Committee you are

bound by i t . You don' t dare use a local union paper or union funds to

back somebody e l se , t ha t ' s s t i l l i n e f f ec t . Bu t on pos i t i ons on ma jo r

b i l l s I can ' t remember any rea l confl ic t we had .

I : You men t ioned tha t t h i s congressman had a l o t o f Po l i sh suppor t . Do

you th ink that the Pol ish workers in Ford 's voted Republ ican for h im?

R: No, he was a democrat . Car l ran against h im in the Democrat ic

p r i m a r y.

I : O h .

R : / Looks l i ke the F ree P ress boy a re you the re . / Ou ts tand ing po les on

this side that spoke for him depose themselves and knew John wasn't a

c h i p o f f t h e o l d b l o c k . I ' l l t e l l y o u t h e fi r s t c h a n c e t h e y g o t o

dump him, they did another cause they emerged distr icts John Dingal

(?) wound up in the same d is t r ic t as John Les insk i (?) . D inga l took

c a r e o f t h a t i n a r e a l h u r r y.

I : D o y o u t h i n k o f a n y t h i n g t h a t d i s t i n g u i s h e d t h e P o l i s h w o r k e r s i n t h e

plant form the other workers?

R : N o .
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I : They are pre t ty much the same?

R: We l l , my God eve rybody i s c l an i sh . Bu t you r ove ra l l ou t l ook on

t h i n g s , n o .

I : How about the workers that came up from the South dur ing the war. Do

they have more of a sentiment for or against the unionism?

R: L i s t en , when t hey go t i n t he re and go t t ha t fi r s t b i g money, t hey

weren' t ant i -union because they knew where i t came from. They weren' t

that s tup id. No, we never had any problem wi th ant i -un ion sent iment

from southern workers, never. Oh, I hear a few now here and then from

our re t i rees , un ion d idn ' t ge t me tha t , Genera l Motors go t i t fo r me

or Ford Motor Company got it for me, especially over a few beers when

they feel independent. And knowing I 'm a former UAW rep.

I : Can you cha rac te r i ze some o f t he l eade rs o f t he r i gh t w ing f ac t i on ,

what were they genera l ly l i ke?

R: They had some very capable people. I never damned the r ight wing

leadership as a whole. Very capable people. Paul Ste. Mar ie who was

an organizer and helped organize the UAW and he wasn't in the building

that was predominantly UAW. As I told you he was, Paul Ste. Marie was

the tool and dye man. And he came out of that bui lding where I told

you they were not having any unions, and yet he was well enough known

through organizat ion and whatnot to become elected president in 1942.

I : W h a t w a s h i s r e p u t a t i o n i n t h e p l a n t ?

R : H e w a s v e r y s h o r t . I ' l l t e l l y o u . A f t e r t h e e x p o s e w h e n h e s u p p o r t e d

that Republ ican governor for reelect ion or whatnot and he never got

e lected. He got e lected one term as a bui ld ing commit teeman in tool

and c^e. That 's when they had three per shi f t he got elected on one

o f t h e n i g h t s h i f t c o m m i t t e e s . I t w a s n ' t t o o l o n g a f t e r t h a t a n d h e
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was appo in ted an in te rna t iona l rep . That was the end. Of course , he

died pret ty young. But he never emerged again.

I : Do you th ink tha t ' s because o f the suppor t o f the Repub l i cans?

R: Yes . That was the eas ies t to tag h im w i th because he cou ldn ' t duck

i t .

I : How about the McCusker?

R: They were b ro thers you know. Joe and I rea l l y had our d i f fe rences

because he was from tool and djfe unit, tool on up to the tool and dfe

building, he was from the dye room in the pressed steel an he was part

of the r ight wing group in the tool and dye uni t and I was part of the

le f t . And we had ou£ d i f fe rences on po l i cy mat te rs and wha t no t . I

respected h is ab i l i t y and he respected mine. Once in awhi le fo r

ins tance he was record ing secre tary and tha t ' s the th i rd h ighes t

o ffice in the un i t . One in wh ich he defeated me for. And we were

having a regular meeting and the other guys of the convention or

whatnot and he said we have a dearth of officers here, I cal l upon a

guy wi th exper ience and a cer ta in amount of abi l i ty brother Orr would

y o u c o m e . T h a t ' s t h e k i n d o f g u y h e w a s . H e w e n t o v e r b o a r d

taking advantage of the t rends of the t imes. McCathyism and whatnot .

He pu t the finger on peop le . I know he d id . I used to accuse h im, i f

you cou ld j us t e l im ina te me f rom you r ha i r you w i l l ge t me . I t ' s f o r

the immigration committee and get me deported. And by god I was

called on by the immigration committee and I know he had nothing to do

w i t h i t . I w a s c a l l e d b e f o r e i t . O n t h e o t h e r h a n d l a t e r w h e n

everything died down, there were certain guys who were under the

threat of being deported l ike, you remember Walter Cocker, he was born

in England and he had been ordered deported.



J o h n O r r 5 9

I : H e w a s a l e f t w i n g e r ?

R: Yeah. He had been ordered depor ted by what s tate depar tment is that?

And Joe went to bat for him and got him a stay in this country and

they dropped al l the charges on him. He would surprise you, you know.

I : Wa s t h a t p r a c t i c e w i d e l y u s e d , g e t t i n g p e o p l e d e p o r t e d .

R : O h , y e s .

I : A l o t o f p e o p l e g o t s e n t b a c k t o t h e i r o r i g i n a l c o u n t r i e s ?

R: Not as many as were ordered. Most of them were al lowed to stay on

appeal, yes. Some of them were sent back.

I: Can you give me an idea as about how many?

R : N o , I c a n ' t . A t t h a t t i m e I w a s t r y i n g t o l i m i t m y u n i o n a c t i v i t y .

My job was taking more and more of my time and I started to stay out

of more th ings. I t seems everyth ing I got pushed in to took up another

Saturday, another Sunday, or more evenings and there only are so many.

Oh, I know we had guys used that as an excuse for ratting on their

former party members l ike I don't know if you ever heard of the name

Lee Romano before—

I : Y e s .

R: And he went to the Unamerican Act iv i t ies Commit tee and his excuse to

the in ternat ional was he was born in I ta ly and he couldn ' t be held in

contempt of court because he was subject to deportation. So he named

names of acquaintances in the department. The same with Paul Boatin.

He was born in I ta ly and that was the excuse he used. I f I d idn ' t

squeal I was going to be deported.

I : Pau l Boa t i n t a l ked be fo re t he commi t t ee? I t hough t he used t he 5 th

Amendment.
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R : He was ca l l ed a l so be fo re t he Sena te . The Subve rs i ve Ac t i v i t i e s

Committee, which I was. He was called the same time I was.

I : What year d id they come?

R: We were inv i ted to Wash ing ton . They d idn ' t come here . There were

five of us in the loca l un ion. Issued subpoenas to go to Washington.

What year was that? I was v ice pres ident o f the loca l un ion.

( 1 9 ) fi f t y - fi v e o r s i x i s t h a t i n h e r e ? T h e I n t e r n a l S e c u r i t y

Commit tee? Walter Dorash, mysel f , James Watts, i t was in the publ ic

works commission, there was another one.

I : So th is occurred a f ter the house commit tee came here?

R : O h , y e s .

I : I n t h a t c o m m i t t e e B o a t i n n a m e d —

R : Ye a h . H e w e n t . J i m m i e Wa t t s a n d I s t o o d t o g e t h e r. B e l i e v e i t o r

no t , Car l S ta l l e to was ou r rep resen ta t i ve , o f cou rse he cou ldn ' t

p re tend to be a lawyer, we d idn ' t ca re fo r lawyers . The loca l un ion

had convinced me that if I migtot use the 5th Amendment then the

opposition would make that stick that I was a 5th amendment communist.

And i t wou ld app ly to tha t . I sweated over tha t dec is ion fo r so long .

And Jimmy Watts said he was going down and admit that he had been a

member of the communist party which he had been for a month or two

when he was a kid in the production foundry. What can they do to me

he said. So we went down and told the subcommittee we appeared

together, Car l S te l la to wou ld be our w i tness , he d idn ' t maybe cou ldn ' t

s p e a k . P a u l B o a t i n w a s d o w n i n t h e h a l l . T h e r e w a s a n o t h e r

hear ing . The commi t tee sp l i t up in to subcommi t tees o f the

subcommittee. And we were in there you know the rule of Congress is

that the major i ty get the chairmanship of the commit tee and the
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subcommittees of committees that's where I got so goddamn mad at the

Democratic party then because I went to this hearing on who was the

subcommittee of one chairman of the committee Senator Butler of

Maryland who got elected by Red Baton Mathis out of office in Maryland

and here I 'm s i t t ing there be fore th is Repub l ican and the lega l

counsel to his subcommittee was Robert Morris who used to work for

McCarthy who later ran for governor of New York on that r ight wing

par ty t i cke t , what was the name o f i t , tha t ' s the charac te rs I had to

go before with the Democrats in charge of the. And this one guy

apparently known to them not to us come running down the hall and went

in there and he whispered oh man, have we got a canary down the aisle.

And I was thinking who the hel l is that. Because I knew Walter Dorash

was down-was down at a separate meetings and Paul Boatin. He says

th is Boa t in i s j us t sp i l l i ng h is gu ts fas te r than we can ask h im

ques t i ons .

I : W h a t a b o u t D o r a s h ?

R : H e w a s s i t t i n g i n t h e r e .

I : And James Wat ts and you rse l f?

R: We answered quest ions. He admit ted being a member, and I denied i t ,

which is fun. And I started asking him who do you know to be a

communist and I told him I don't know anybody who is a communist once

they ident ified themselves to me as a communist. And I was sure glad

this happened before Boatin was down there because I wouldn't have

even sa id what I sa id about h im. But they s tar ted ask ing me is th is

guy Karlin, I says look I was never a member of the communist party.

I have been accused of this and that but I wouldn't know a communist

i f he i den t i fied h imse l f . So he sa id d id you know any commun is t s . I
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said Bi l l McKie repor ted for the Dai ly Worker a communist paper, B i l l

McKie who res igned f rom loca l un ion office say ing that he couldn ' t in

good conscience as a communist party member retain the office and sign

a n o n c o m m u n i s t a f fi d a v i t . O h y e a h I s a i d a n d P a u l B o a t i n , y e a h .

I was on the plantwide bargaining committee in tool and dye was over

in the Motor building where he was a member and he got me in the

ais leway alongside the payrol l a l l a lone and told me I had the makings

and he wanted me to join the communist party. So I kind of needled

into Mr. Boat in . Then they asked me about at tending the Western

Hemisphere Youth Conference, in '43. They said aren' t you a

communist? How come you attended that call to the Communist party

Youth Conference? And I said you know who the American sponsor to

tha t con fe rence was . You te l l us . I sa id a we l l - known communis t

N e l s o n R o c k e f e l l e r . U n d e r s e c r e t a r y w a s t h e r e _ • I w a s

out in the opera house in Mexico City, President of Mexico addresses

us and everyth ing e lse.

I : So was t he re any ram ifica t i ons o f t hose hea r i ngs , t he Sena te

subvers ive?

R: Never heard ano ther th ing . Tha t ' s why I say I don ' t know o f anybody.

I don't know of anybody in the labor movement that ever got in trouble

for using the 5th amendment. I don' t know anybody that denied having

membership. Your fear always was they would come up with a forged

paper membership card or some damn thing. What are the donations you

made. That 's a mistake to let the guy take your name and put i t on a

p iece of paper. Sov ie t Amer ican Fr iendship Commit tee, or Amer ican

Peace Movement. Al l o f those are l is ted as being communist f ronts
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where your name was on a lot of those. Oh I said aren't you for

p e a c e ? H e l l I j u s t t r i e d t o s l u f f i t o f f .

I: We were talking about some of the right wing members and we were

talking about McCusker, what about Henry McCuster?

R: Wel l , as I to ld you he was one of the officers of the ACTU, that was

t h e A s s o c i a t i o n o f C a t h o l i c — a n d p r e s i d e n t o f t h e

A i r c ra f t Eng ine Un i t . Bu t j us t as t he commun is t pa r t y l eade rsh ip

never said they were communists or advocated communism, none of the

ACTU members outside of those two I discovered accidental ly, I guess,

that they were offered to come forward and said I 'm an active member.

Joe McCusker used to deny i t . His brother Henry was an officer, Joe

denied he was ever a member.

I : Why was tha t? Was i t unpopu la r w i th the workers?

R: Wi th some and not wifi t o thers. Joe was pret ty good. He had a Scotch

brogue out of his place when he was talking to a Scotchman and he

cou ld be ta lk ing to an I r i sh Catho l i c and I ' l l be goddam i f h is b rogue

d idn ' t change. There were many t r i cks .

I: So how was Henry McCuster as a Union leader?

R : A g a i n s t e v e r y t h i n g I w a s f o r. E v e n t u a l l y h e w e n t d o w n t o t h e n a t i o n a l

Ford Department and he more or less got submerged down there handling

gr ievances and there is not much you can say pol i t ical about

gr ievances. Gr ievances eminate f rom the shop that are appelaed to

f rom the l oca l un ion , t he l oca l un ion ge ts t he l as t c rack a t i t t ha t

a t r ev iew boa rd w i t h a company i n i t . I f t hey can vo te sa t i s f ac t i on

the i r appea l to the na t iona l Ford depar tment fo r poss ib le appea l to

the impar t ia l umpire. And he was prepar ing cases down there for that .
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I: How about other prominant right wing, Oh I guess Tom Yeager was a

right wing.

R: No Tom was not.

I: No, he wasn't, he was left?

R: I always thought he was left. Some say neutral but he was never

r i g h t , t h a t ' s f o r s u r e . H e ' s s t i l l a l i v e , i n c i d e n t a l l y.

I: Yeah. I was going to have an interview with him but the scheduling

got mixed up. Okay, what about some of the left wingers. Do you

remember William Allen, was he that prominant in the shop?

R: Oh, that's the guy I told you was a reporter for the Worker. He was—

I: Yeah. I know. Now I 'm star t ing on lef t again.

R: Yeah, he was a reporter for this communist Sunday worker newspaper.

He wasn't any—

I: He never worked in the shop?

R : N o .

I: Oh. So he just hung around there a lot?

R: Billy Allen, yeah. Wherever he could picking up scraps because the

paper always advocated something. It wasn't always in line with what

the UAW was doing, they were opposed most of the time to positions the

intenational union took.

I: Did people know him generally?

R : Ye s ! Ye s .

I: Was he popular?

R: No. More or less tolerated. He was popular with some people you can

imagine. Stellato ordered him out of the local finally. Told him not

to come back again or he would call the cops, or just have his staff

throw him out bodily.
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I : W h a t a b o u t To m J e l l y ?

R: He was a committee man under me. He was one of the original

commit teemen in the tool and dye uni t Press Steel bui ld ing. He never

advocated communism or anything l ike that to my knowledge. In fact he

w a s a h i g h l y r e l i g i o u s m a n , s t i l l i s . H e ' s s t i l l a l i v e t o o . B u t h e

was for a l l c iv i l r ights movements and everyth ing e lse. He seemed to

me to go along with a brotherhood of man concept that unionism was

meant to be. Good enough for me.

I : So you mentioned earl ier that some guy said he was the best committee

man that he had known. Was that a general sentiment you think?

R: Oh, yeah. Tom was very we l l l i ked. Most o f the t ime he never had any

o p p o s i t i o n f o r e l e c t i o n . We u s e d t o h a v e y e a r l y e l e c t i o n s . M o s t o f

the t ime he never had any opposi t ion. Mack Cinzor i subsequent ly

became president of the tool and d ie uni t .

I : How about Sheldon Tappes?

R : He was p res i den t o f t he i r on f ound ry du r i ng t he o r i g i na l o rgan i z i ng

d a y s . O n e o f t h e fi r s t e l e c t e d . H e w a s o n t h e o r i g i n a l F o r d

nego t ia t i ng commi t tee .

I : Was he popu la r w i th the worke rs?

R: Wel l , I to ld you i t was a la rge segment o f foundry was ant i -un ion and

somet imes ce r ta in qua r te rs i n tha t bu i l d ing , boy, l i f e was in danger,

I ' l l te l l you . I remember one t ime I wen t in tha t foundry and was

lucky a bunch of us did come out. Some guys had a rope out and were

going to hang them from the nearest raf ter for work ing against Mr.

Ford . But he was a gutsy fe l low, a sk inny l i t t le guy, you met h im.

I : Y e a h .
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R: He was the same then. We got autonomy in '42 he was the original

secretary o f the Local 600.

I : Can I go back jus t one minute to th is inc ident tha t when you walked in

and those guys were madjfe at Tappes, were those—

R : W o r k e r s .

I : Were they B lack workers o r Wh i te?

R : Ye a h , B l a c k .

I : B l a c k . T h a t w a s s t i l l t h e s e n t i m e n t —

R: Wel l , now there were other Black workers. There were those who would

protect h im. But h is back was r ight against the wal l , boy and he was

tak ing them a l l on .

I : So ove r t he p lan t he was p re t t y we l l r espec ted?

R: Neve r go t e lec ted aga in to p res iden t o f t he found ry o r reco rd ing

s e c r e t a r y.

I : A f t e r w h a t p e r i o d ?

R : Fo r t y - two , he se r ved one t e rm .

I : Why was tha t do you th ink?

R: We l l , no he was e lec ted in ' 43 w i th Percy L lewe l l yn .

I : Wel l , when he fa i led to get reelected, do you know what happened?

R: No, wel l we got swept out in 1944 or '45. Joe McCusker got e lected

pres ident o f the loca l and took h is s la te in w i th h im. He seated W.

G. Gran t a l so f rom too l and dye , boy fo r a un ion , i t d i dn ' t

the UAW, we had the leaders emerge. Yeah, there was always a skil led

worker and among the top officers and the Local 600. There is today.

I : Wa s G r a n t a w e l l - l i k e d g u y ?

R : Ye s . D y e m a k e r. H e w a s e l e c t e d i n ' 4 2 a s fi n a n c i a l s e c r e t a r y a n d

r e e l e c t e d i n ' 4 3 . F o r t y - f o u r I t h i n k h e r a n f o r l o c a l p r e s i d e n t g o t
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elected and then Joe McCuster defeated him the next year. That 's when

the r igh t w ing took over in '45 .

I : How about John Ga l lo , wha t was h is repu ta t ion in the p lan t?

R: Oh, the man that smi les. He had a ready smi le, he was a l ikeable guy.

I think he was no heavyweight thinker but he had a way with the

workers and especial ly among the athletes. He was qui te a boxer in

his day, you know.

I: I remember reading one of the Ford opinions I mean one of the umpire

opinions about some boxer doing a job on a Ford guy becaue there was

an inc ident where—

R : I t w a s n o t G a l l o .

I : I t w a s n ' t G a l l o ?

R : N o .

I : They dragged this guy in who was an ex-professional boxer and he was

reluctant to go but I guess he went in there with a Ford guy for

awh i le . I can ' t remember exac t ly what year i t was .

R : W e h a d t w o e x - p r o f e s s i o n a l fi g h t e r s t h a t w e r e l o c a l o f fi c e r s . A g u y

by the name of Joe Rivers. But he was never engaged in any incident

l i ke that e i ther and he was a r igh t w inger.

I : How about James Watts?

R : W e l l , I m e t h i m i n t h i n t h e f o u n d r y a n d t h e n t h e y s t a r t e d a

new bui ld ing specia l i ty foundry where they used to make smal l parts in

the Dearborn i ron foundry a long wi th the blocks and everyth ing else

the had separated and started a new foundry, small parts were made and

they ca l l ed i t spec ia l t y foundry. He was e lec ted the re one year bu t

the election was challenged by a guy named Cleveland Peck who claimed

he won i t i n the e lec t ion i t was s to len .
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I : Was C leve land Peck a r i gh t w inger?

R : N o .

I : H e w a s l e f t . T h e r e i s t w o l e f t r u n a g a i n s t e a c h o t h e r .

R: Watts had been a long way out of the party by then according to him.

I : B u t h e w a s s t i l l o n a p r o g r e s i v e s i d e ?

R: No dammi t , I don ' t t h ink he was .

I : N o ?

R: No , he wen t a l ong w i t h Reu the r and Ca l S te l l a to . A t t ha t t ime

conventions were a year apart and Cleveland Peck appealed that report

of the elect ion commit tee in the General Counci l when i t was turned

down appealed at the convention. And he was upheld in the convention,

but there was noth ing he could gain. By that t ime the year 's term had

run ou t .

I : Ye a h , t i m e t o v o t e a g a i n , h u h .

R: So he said I want the expense money I want that job and the

in ternat iona l sa id we l l what expenses d ig you incur, you d idn ' t have

the j ob . And he go t no th ing fo r a l l h i s t r oub le . Now tha t was Wa t t s '

one term. He come down on the local union staff under Car l Ste l lato

in 1950. And he was edi tor of the Ford paper for years. And he went

to the region under Joe McCusker. Then Coleman Young took care of

h im .

I : Wa s h e w e l l l i k e d i n t h e p l a n t , Wa t t s ?

R: Oh , he was a ve ry l i keab le guy. Oh , he was a bu l l sh i t t e r f rom the

word go. Don ' t ever lend h im money. He had a reputa t ion for that

too. He never stole from a white, he borrowed money and never paid

him back. Man, that 's what you owe us people for 200 years of

s l a v e r y.
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I : Wha t k i nd o f r epu ta t i on d i d Pau l Boa t i n have i n t he p l an t?

R : B i g m o u t h , m a i n l y. H e c o u l d t a l k a b l u e s t r e a k . A n d h e c o u l d t a l k

I t a l i an . And he cou ld go to I t a l i ans and he cou ld se l l t hem a b i l l o f

goods and they were his campaigners.

I : W e r e t h e r e a l o t o f I t a l i a n s i n t h e p l a n t ?

R : O h , y e s . I n h i s b u i l d i n g , y e s . I ' m n o t g o i n g t o s a y i n a n y o n e p l a n t

t he se lec t e thn i c g roup p redomina ted . I t was j us t l a rge sec t i ons .

There might have been large sect ions of others in there too.

I : S o d i d w o r k e r s o t h e r t h a n I t a l i a n s g e n e r a l l y l i k e h i m ?

R : O h , y e s . H e g o t e l e c t e d b i g .

I : A n d V i r g i l L a c e y, w a s h e p o p u l a r ?

R : Yeah , we l l he ran fo r p res iden t o f t he l oca l un ion i n 1949 . He was

President of Tool and Eye uni t for four years and then in '49 he ran

for the pres ident o f the loca l and go t de fea ted .

I : And Lee Romano?

R: He was the pres ident under the Press Stee l bu i ld ing in the ear ly days

in the ear ly 40s and v ice president of Local 600 for two years I

believe with Tommy Thompson and they got defeated. Lee Ramano went to

work for Amalgamated Clothing Workers I bel ieve i t was. Joe McCusker

eventually put him on the Regent staff as a UAW rep.

I : D i d h e a l s o a p p e a l t o t h e I t a l i a n s ?

R : W h o ?

I : R o m a n o ?

R : V e r y fl u e n t i n I t a l i a n . H e j u s t d i d n ' t b e l o n g t o I t a l i a n c l u b s ,

f ra te rna l c lubs and wha tno t , I t a l i an -Amer i can c lub and th i s and tha t ,

so i t was a lways a s t rong nat iona l is t ic base to appea l to .

I : O t h e r w i s e h e w a s p o p u l a r a l s o ?
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R: Wel l , as I sa id he was pres ident o f Press Stee l and that was a rea l

b ig bu i l d ing 12 o r 13 ,000 peop le . I wasn ' t t he re bu t he was . No th ing

succeeds l ike success, does i t?

I: How about Dave Moore?

R : Ye a h . A x l e B u i l d i n g . T h e h i g h e s t h e e v e r g o t w a s v i c e - p r e s i d e n t .

But very, very vocal . You would th ink he was somet imes the President

of the United States the way he would go to a meeting and try to take

over and dominate i t . Oh, my God. Very, very s t rong on h is

c o n v i c t i o n s .

I : D i d p e o p l e l i k e h i m o r d i d t h a t t u r n t h e p e o p l e o f f ?

R : N o , h e t u r n e d a l o t o f p e o p l e o f f . P a r t i c u l a r l y w h e n h e s t a r t e d t h e

r a c i s t a n g l e .

I : When was tha t , when he s ta r ted tha t?

R : W e l l , fi r s t t h i n g , I h a d h e a r d a b o u t i t , b u t I c o u l d n ' t b e l i e v e m y

ears one day. Alex Semion, a guy named Alex Semion—Semion, a Russian

born in China president of the Axle Bui ld ing, and boy they were having

r i g h t w i n g t r o u b l e s i n t h e r e i n f a c t t h e y g o t d e f e a t e d . A n d a t t h a t

t ime the local execut ive board was in an o ld bui ld ing, not the one

that i t 's in now, and I came in the back door and boy I hear a l l th is

noise and I asked what meeting was going on and they said well i t 's

Alex Semion's caucus in there. And I said who is ta lk ing, Dave Moore.

I stood there and l istened in. Dave Moore was accusing Alex Semion of

be ing a bobo (? ) . Ho ly Cr ipes . I f eve r I heard a guy e r roneous ly

named, holy Jesus. Alex Semion was a real civi l r ights man and

everyth ing else and for h im to say that ; and blame al l the problems in

there Alex Semion being a bobo (?) . Oh, he just went rav ing mad. I 'm

sure he must have been sorry later for some of the things he said.
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But he never let you forget he was a Black first and other th ings

a f t e r t h a t .

I : And what about Joe Hogan.

R: Joe Hogan ran against Car l Ste l la to in 1952 and he was president of

the Axle Bui lding. And we were looking for a candidate and we

selected Joe Hogan. He didn' t want to leave the bui ld ing and he

wasn't a very ambitious guy and what not but we convinced him to run.

And a t any ra te i t was th ree cand ida tes i n t he race . Car l S te l l a to ,

Joe Hogan and former president Tommy Thompson. And Hogan and Thompson

got enough votes between them to force a runoff wi th Ste l la to. Hogan

w a s i n t h e r u n o f f . A n d h e j u s t b a r e l y l o s t . I t w a s a v e r y c l o s e

e lec t ion . I t h ink abou t tha t t ime S te l l a to dec ided he had to make

some overtures to the lef t wing because he was gett ing closer.

I : T h i s i s i n ' 5 2 ?

R : Y e a h .

I : S o , h e w a s a l i k e a b l e g u y a l s o ?

R : O h , y e a h .

I : H o w a b o u t H a r o l d F r a n k l i n ?

R: Oh, he came from the i ron foundry and went over to the jobbing

foundry. And that was a mixture of Whites and Blacks there because

they made specia l par ts there a lso. And the molders jobbing core

makers and molders in that p lant were Whi te or o f fore ign ext ract ion,

b u t n o t B l a c k . T h e r e w a s a v e r y h i g h l y s k i l l e d j o b . Yo u d i d n ' t t a k e

those and put them on production l ine, and pour them like you do

engine blocks. These were through one or two short run parts and

whatnot. Pattern makers made the pattern and these guys had to do the

casing on them and whatnot. There were quite a few Whites in that
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foundry. And Haro ld Frank l in ran for pres ident there one year and boy
v

he made a mistake. The White president, his name was Harry Gides, and

Frankl in accused him of just being a pork chopper. He was only in

that job for the expense money or what not. He wasn't a

representat ive o f the foundry workers and th is and that , he car r ied on

t h a t k i n d o f c a m p a i g n a n d fi n a l l y b r o u g h t a c a r t o o n i n , a l e a fl e t , i t

was l isted "dressed pork" and it had the animal body of a pig and
v

Har ry G ibes ' name, o r head, d ressed pork they ca l led i t . In those

days anybody in the union just for the expense and what not were

labe led po rk choppe rs . Tha t had a r eve rse e f f ec t . Tha t d i dn ' t go

over so good. He never got e lected and I don' t th ink he ever got

e l e c t e d t o a n y t h i n g a g a i n . N o w t h a t ' s H a r o l d F r a n k l i n , t h a t ' s n o t

G o d f f r e y F r a n k l i n .

I : How about Wi l l i am Hood?

R: I d idn ' t know too much about h im. He was on the bargain ing commit tee

in the assembly p lant . And most of the Blacks in the plant were lef t

wing inclined, oh, not communists, and Joe McCusker when he ran in '44

for Pres ident o f the Loca l had a he l l o f a t ime get t ing a s la te wi th a

Black on it and he was on the bargaining committee in the Assembly

Plant . Joe put h im on the s late. I th ink i t was Joe McCusker put h im
V

on the s la te fo r record ing secre ta ry to ha te B lack co lo ra t ion on i t .

I : Was he a r i gh t w inge r, Hood?

R: Yeah, some of those guys could be anything. You would have to have

been t he re t o be l i e ve i t .

I : Wa s A r t M c P h a u l w e l l l i k e d i n t h e p l a n t ?

R: Ano the r b ig mou th . Yeah he cou ld se l l t he Negroes bu t he cou ldn ' t

se l l a f a i rm inded Wh i te any th ing . Jus t so ld B lack . And I guess he
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let i t be known that he was a communist . A lways tak ing a co l lect ion

for someth ing.

I: How about James O'Rourk? Do you remember him?

R: Yes . He was an o ffice r i n the moto r Bu i ld ing and on the ba rga in ing

committee. He was president once. Can't remember what he used to be.

He le f t t he i n te rna t i ona l un ion ' s Fo rd depar tmen t .

I : W a s h e w e l l l i k e d ?

R : Ve r y l i k e a b l e I r i s h m a n . Ye a h . T h e y h a d a r e d u c t i o n f o r c e t h e

in ternat iona l un ion. Now O'Rourk and Ste l la to were budd ies in the

mo to r p l an t . O 'Rou rk go t r e i ns ta ted . The Mo to r Bu i l d i ng was t o rn

down by t hen . He go t r e i ns ta ted i n t he Ro l l i ng M i l l . Jus t as a

sweeper. Here is a guy with a couple of years of col lege and was

p r e s i d e n t o f b u i l d i n g a n d i n t e r n a t i o n a l r e p .

I : W a s h e l e f t o r r i g h t w i n g e r ?

R: R ight . But he ran and, he came back and ran fo r record ing secre tary

the next year and defeated a Negro. Defeated Bi l l Johnson. And he

g o t r e e l e c t e d .

I : Okay, we l l I don ' t have anymore quest ions un less you want—

R : Ye a h . We l l , I w e n t t o t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l u n i o n i n 1 9 6 3 a n d O ' R o u r k

succeeded me as vice president of the local.

I : W h a t d i d y o u d o i n t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l ?

R: I worked fo r Joe McCusker, be l ieve i t o r no t I served a t South Ford

(? ) Ba l f o r p l an t . I was t he fi r s t appea l f o r t he g r i evance f r om Fo rd

p lan ts under our ju r i sd ic t ion and I was the s tee l t rades

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e . I w a s t r o u b l e s h o o t e r, a n y p l a n t i n t h e r e g i o n t h a t

had steel t rades problems.
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I: Do they keep those records when you have those grievance stages? When

you have gr ievances that a plant review board or the status of the

in ternat iona l rev iews, do they keep those records?

R: Yeah . I don ' t know how, t hey c lean house . My god they rea l l y p i l e up

but yeah they are kept for I don' t know how long. They're down in the

nat ional Ford depar tment . Wel l , the loca l un ions make appeal them.

They had their own records too there are copies made.

I : W h e r e i s t h e n a t i o n a l F o r d p l a n t .

R : 8 0 0 0 E a s t J e f f e r s o n , i t ' s i n S o l i d a r i t y H o u s e .

I : I s t he re any th i ng e l se you can t h i nk o f t ha t m igh t be impo r t an t?

R : I l i v e d a l o n g l i f e .

I : V e r y a c t i v e i t s o u n d s l i k e .

R: Some good, some bad.

I : I guess i t was p re t t y ha rd , you were ta l k ing abou t the taxes on your

pe rsona l l i f e , how i t t akes away f rom you r f r ee t ime . I guess t ha t ' s

a p r e t t y d i f f i c u l t —

R : Ye a h , i t ' s p r e t t y h a r d t o e x p l a i n t h o u g h . I n a h o m e w h e r e t h e r e

wasn ' t any un ion sen t iment . Th is i s my second w i fe . I d idn ' t mean

h e r .

I : Yeah, I remember you sa id she was in the Office and Profess iona l

Worker 's Union.

R: Yeah, those at tacks, boy oh boy, they were, you don' t know how

personal they could get. Have women cal l your wife at home and tel l

her you were in a bar with some woman, he's in the bar with me. Or go

to a convention and come back.

I : W o u l d t h a t b e f o r p o l i t i c a l r e a s o n s ?
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R : We l l , c e r t a i n l y. A n d b u s t u p y o u r h o m e , a n y t h i n g . F o r c e y o u t o

res ign to mainta in peace at home. Anyth ing. Of course there was on ly

a g r e a t t h a t r e s o r t e d t o t h o s e t a c t i c s . I s u r e a s h e l l n e v e r

c o u l d i n t e r j e c t i n t o a n y b o d y ' s h o m e l i f e o r a n y t h i n g e l s e . D r i n k i n g

hab i t s , woman iz ing , any th ing e l se . I used to say I 'm no t a mora l i s t .

I won' t pre judge you.

I : You know o f t en t he impo r tan t s i de o f t he s to r y t ha t ha rd l y ge t s pa id

at tent ion to , is what i t takes on a personal level to become so

invo lved in the un ion .

R: I remember what Jimmy Watts told me one day when he and I got more on

a f r iendl ier terms; he was edi tor of the paper and photographer too

when Joe Hogan ran against him he sent Watts out to Bellvi l le, Joe

l i v e d i n B e l l v i l l e , M i c h i g a n , I g u e s s h e s t i l l d o e s t o t a k e a p i c t u r e

of that bastard's home, somebody had told me he had a real palatial

home out there.


